
REPUBLIC OF KENYA

OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL

E n h a n c i n g A c' y^ o u n t a b i I i 4,

REPORT
l'l\ t{ l.l ,\ \'r I ^' I

()t K[..i.,,
l.llJt{u\1,\'

;^; j,#i.,*
Mr,ia,* l-o1!o-

THE AUDITOR.GENERAL

ON

KENYA RURAL ROADS AUTHOiUTY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
30 JUNE,2023





L

KENYA RURAL ROADS AUTHORITY

-;t
I

ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 3OTH 2023

Prepared in accordance with the Accrual Basis of Accounting Method under the

lnternational Public Sector Accountinq Standards (IPSAS)

C onnecting Devolved Kenya



h, n.ru Rrtrul Rtrl' lrtth,'t trt
lnnutl Rtl,,rr rtt,l I inrt, irl \r,tr,'mttrt'
Irtt thr rtrr tttl.l .ll/" .lu r :lt) l

TABLE OF CONTENTS

ABBREVIATIONS .................................iii

KEY AUTHORITY'S INFORMATION AND MANAGEMENT......................................................vi

BOARD OF DIRECTORS...............,.... ...............................viii

MANAGEMENT TEAM.............,........ ...............................viii

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS................. ..............................xvii

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT....... ...................................xviii

REPORT OF THE DTRECTOR GENERAL............................. ...........................xx

REVIEW OF PERFORMANCE FOR Fv 2022/2023 .......................................xxii

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT ................ ...............................xxv

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS................. .....................xxviii

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT/ SUSTAINABLITY ........................xxxi

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS........... ..............................x1ii

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITIES ........ .......................... xliii

REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS ON KENYA RURAL ROADS AUTHORITY.xIiv

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE FOR YEAR ENDED 3OTH JUNE 2023.............. I

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 30 JUNE 2023 ...................................................2

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS FOR YEAR ENDED 3OTH JTJNE 2023 ...............3

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR YEAR ENDED 3OTH JIJNE 2023 ......,,...............,..............4

STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF BIJDGET AND ACTUAL AMOUNT ..,...............,.,.,...........5

STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF BUDGET AND ACTUAL AMOIJNT FOR YEAR ENDED

30TH JLrNE 2023.. .. .................. ............... 6

DrscusstoN....... ....................................6

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS..... ...............7

APPENDIX l: PRORESS ON FOLLOW UP OF AUDITORS RECOMMENDATIONS................38

APPENDIX II: DEVELOPMENT PARTNERS PROJECTS IMPLEMENTED BY THE AUTHORITY

APPENDIX III: INTER ENTITY TRANSFER............. ......................................49

APPENDIX IV: RECORD OF TRANSFERS FROM OTHER COVERNMENT ENTITIES...........5l

,IlI
o



r, I

Iicn.tu Rural Rools luthorit't

, .ltttruul Rcport unl l;inurk'iul Srut[,rz,otr\
Lir the wur ru td -lllh ,lu,tr 202.1

ABBREVIATIONS

AIA

AFD

BADEA

EU

GIS

GoK

IPSAS

IPSASB

KeRRA

KeNHA

Kfw

KM

KRA

KRB

KURA

MTEF

LVSR

MoR&T

RMLF

RSIP

FY

Appropriation In Aid

Agence Francise De Development

The Arab Bank for Economic Development [n Africa

European Union

Financial Year

Geographical Information Systern

Government of Kenya

lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards

Intemational Public Sector Accounting Standards Board

Kenya Rural Roads Authority (The Authority)

Kenya National Highways Authority

Germany Development Bank

Kilometres

Kenya Revenue Authority

Kenya Roads Board

Kenya Urban Roads Authority

Medium Term Expenditure Framework

Low Volume Seal Roads

Ministry of Roads and Transport

Road maintenance Lely Fund

Road Sector lnvestment Programme

t



It tr,,; litt ,tt li.,,t.l' t,t,t, tt,
tlr't:t tl li !. rr,t,t I I t,;,t'. ,t \r tt ,t , '

l,,t tlt, t,.t,. tt t, [;t) l]1,t, i,', tI

OUR MISSION

To Develop, Manage and Maintain the
National Secondary Trunk Road
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(a) Background information
Kenya Rural Roads Authority (KeRRA) is a State Corporation established under the Kenya Roads

Act 2007.The Authority is headed by a Board of Directors led by a Chairman with the Director
General being the Chief Executive of the Authority.

At the cabinet level the Authority is represented by the Cabinet Secretary for the Ministry ofRoads
and Transport who is responsible for the general policy and strategic direction of the Authority.

The Authority begun its operations in September 2008 and is represented in the 47 counties through

regional offices.

(b) Principal activities
The Kenya Roads Act 2007 provides for the mandate olthe Authority to manage, develop, rehabilitate
and maintain the rural road network within the Republic of Kenya. However, the Constitution of
Kenya 2010 assigns the responsibility of managing National Trunk Roads to National Govemment
and County Roads to County Govemments under the Fourth Schedule Part l8(b). In line with this
provision, the road network in Kenya was reclassified vide Kenya Gazette Notice of22nd January
2016 by the State Department of Infrastructure. National trunk roads in Class C totaling 19,504 Km
were vested to the Authority by the Cabinet Secretary. A further reclassification by the Cabinet
Secretary on 8th May 2020 revised the Authority's network to I 8,662Km of national trunk road
network in Class C.
(c)Key Management
The Authority's day to day management is under the following key organs;

I . Board of Directors
2. Senior Management led by the Director General

(d) Fiduciary Management
The key Management personnel who held office during the financial year ended 30rh June 2023 and
who had direct fiduci onsibilit were

I

No. Designation Name

Director General Eng. Philemon Kiprop Kandie

2 Director (Development)
Eng.Jackson K. Magondu

3 Director (Road Asset Management) Eng.Peter Patu Gichohi

4 Director (Planning, Design and Environment Eng.Enock Ariga Kombo

5 Director ( Research, Strategy & Compliance) Eng.Julius K. Gakubia

6 Director (Corporate Services) CPA.Dan Manyasi

CPA. Judith Chepkemoi Chumo'7 Deputy Director (Audit Services)

8 Deputy Director (Corporation Secretary/ Legal Affairs) Mr.Justin Rapando.

9 Deputy Director(Supply Chain Management) MCIPS. Ms.Catherine Kangangi

(e) Fiduciary Oversight Arrangements



Ktntu Runrl Roul; lnhority
lnnuul Rtport uni I intnL itl .Suuntnt;
l or tht yatr tnlcl .lllt' .tun. 2tl2lI

l. Public lnvestments Committee.

2. Transport Committee of Parliament.

3. Ministry of Roads and Transport.

4. Kenya Roads Board.

5. Audit and Finance Board Committees.
(0 Authority Headquarters
Barabara Plaza Block B, Airport South road, Opp KCAA building.

(g) Authority Contacts
P.O Box 48151 - 00100,
Nairobi GPO
Tel.0202710464
Email : kerra@lerra. so.ke
Website: www.Kerra.go.ke

(h) Principal Bankers

I. KCB Bank Limited,
Moi Avenue Branch,
P.O. Box 48400-00100,
Nairobi GPO

2. NCBA Bank Limited,
Upper Hill Branch,
P.O. Box 44599-00100,
Nairobi GPO

3. Equig Bank Limited,
Equity Centre,
Hospital Road, Upper Hill.
P.O. Box 75104-00200,
Nairobi

4. Cooperative Bank Limited
Co-operative House,
Haile Selassie Avenue,
P.O. Box 48231 - 00100,
Nairobi GPO

(i) IndependentAuditors
Office of the Auditor General
Anniversary Towers, University Way
P.O. Box 49384-00100
Nairobi, GPO

() Principal Legal Adviser
The Attomey General

State Law Office
Harambee Avenue
P.O. Box 401 12

City Square 00200

Nairobi, Kenya



BOARD OF DIRECTORS
I

-fhc Board membcrs are drar.vn liorn rsprcssntatives tiorn public and private scctor as sct out in

sr:ction 8 of thc Kcnya ltoatls Act 2007.Tho mcnrbqrs who lrcld the olflcc during thc ycar untlcr

revicw ll,crc as lirllorvs:

Prof (Eng) Oyuko. O. Mbeche was born in 1946. Prof.(Eng.) Mbeche rs a
holder of B.Eng. From Stevens Institute of Technology(USA), MSc from
Polytechnic lnstitute of Brooklyn(USA)and PhD from the Univcrsity of
Nairobi. He is a Civil Engineer specializing in the field of Transportation
Planning and Engineering.

Prof. (Eng) Mbeche is a Nobel Peace Prize recipient bestowed on him by the
Intemational Panel on Climate Change (IPCC) in December, 2007, Member
American Society of Civil Engineers. Member Anerican Society of
Engineering Education, Member Kenya National Academy of Sciences and
Member Engineering Board ofKenya . He is a Professor of Civil Engineering
at the University of Nairobi and has supervised various undergraduate and
postgraduatc projects and has published widely

Ile is the Chairperson ofthe Board. He has written many research papers on
matters touching on land use. planning, transpon economics and urban
planning. ln his work experience, he has worked as a project coordinator, team
leader, and project civiystructural engineer in various govemment
organizations and trained in corporate govemance

Hon. Amb. UL-ur Yatani Kanacho was bom in 1967 and holds Bachelor of
Ans in Economics, Egenon Univenity, Kenya, l99l and Mastcr of Arts in
Public Administration and Public Policy, University of York, United
Kingdom,2005;

He has over 27-year experience in public administration, politics, diplomacy
and govemance in public sector since 1992. Before his appointment as

Cabinet Secretary for the National Treasury & Planning he scned as the
Cabinet Secretary for [-abour and Social Protection since January 2018.

Between the ycars 2006-2007 while Member of Parliamenl for North Ilorr
constituency, served as an Assistant minister for scicnce and technology. At
the height of his career (March 2013-August 2017), he served as a pioneer
Governor of Marsabit County, the largest County in the Republic of Kenya.
Between June 2009 and October 2012, he served as Kenya's Ambassador lo
Austria with Accreditation to Hungary and Slovakia and Pemranent
Representative to the United Nations in Vienna. In this position, he

aggressively pursued and advanced Kenya's foreign interests.

He hcld scnior leadership positions at various diplomalic and intemational
agencies such as Intemational Atomic Energy Agcncy (IAEA), United
Nations Organization on Drugs and Crimes (l-,rNODC), Uniled Nalions
Industrial Devclopment Organization (UNIDO), Vice Chairpcrson of United
Nations Convention Againsl Transnational Organized Crime (UNTOC), Vice
President of Convention on Crime Prevention and Crinrinal Justicc (CCPJ).

and chair of African Group of Ambassadors among others. Belween 1992

2015, he sen'ed in diffcrent positions in Kenya's Public Adntinistration
including a District Commissioner, u'here sharpcned his management and
admirristrative skills.

Prof.(Eng) Oyuko Mbeche EBS

Chairperson ofBoard

Hon. Amb. Ukur Yatani. EGII
Cabinet Secretary National Treasury

Upto 276 October 2022



Prof. Njuguna Ndung'u, CBS

Cabinet Secretary Nalional Trcasury
From 276 october 2022

Prof. Njuguna Ndung'u was born 1960. and a holder Bachelor of Ans in
Economics degree , and Master of Arts in Economics both from the

University of Nairobi and PhD in Economics from the University of
Gothenburg , Sweden.

Prof Njuguna is an Associate Professor of Economics at the University of
Nairobi, a former Covernor of the Cenual Bank of Kenya. He has been a

member of Global Advisory Council (GAC) of the World Economic Forum

and a Visiting Fellow of Practice at the Blavatnik School of Govemment,

Oxford University. Director of Training at AERC, Program specialisl

at IDRC and Team Leader in Macro-modelling at th€ Kenya Institute for

Public Policy Research and Analysis. He is a Member of Brookings Africa

Gromh lnitiative, Member of the Advisory Committee of the Alliance for

Financial Inclusion, that coordinates financial inclusion policies in Africa,

Asia and Latin America. and Senior Advisor for the LNCDF-based Better

Than Cash Alliance.

Prior to the current appointment, Proi Ndung'u was serving as the Executive

Director of the African Economic Research Consortium (AERC), a Pan

African premier capacity building network of researcherc, trainers, students,

universities, policy makers and intemational resource penons.

Zrhra Mohsmed Ilaji
Alternate to Cabinet Secretary

National Treasury
Upto 5th June 2023

Ms. Zahra Mohamed llaji was born in t98l and is a holder of B.Sc
Joumalism from United States International University, Africa and a M.A
Joumalism (lntemational) from London University of Westminster.

She is a dynamic and highly motivated communications coordinator with l2
years ofexperience engaging members of diverse communities, government
agencies and private organizations in strategic marketing venlures to develop
cross-functional relationships that contribute to business growlh and

awareness raising. She has proven ability to promote mandates and services
to consumers within the corporate arld non-profit sectoni through market trend
analysis and detailed research and is trained in corporate govemance

She was an Executive Assistant to the Cabinet Secretary, Ministry of Labour
and Social Protection and the Executive Assistant to the Cabinet Secretary,
Ministry of National Trcasury and Planning. She has held senior leadership
positions such as Senior Manager, Advocacy and Communication at

Commission on Administrative Justice (Office of the Ombudsman) and also
was a Managing Dircctor at Radio Salaam t-imited, Mombasa, Kenya.

f I
Samson Palia Wangusi, OGW,
Alternate to Cabinet Secretary

National 'l reasury
From 5th June 2021

ra

Mr Samson l'alia Wangusi was bom in 1966 .He holds a Masters of Arts in
Public Administration and a Bachelor's degree in Public Administration
from Moi University and the University ofNairobi respeclively.

Mr. Wangusi is a seasoncd administrator with vast experience in Public Sector
Managenen(, spanning over 30 years and currently thc Principal
Administrative Secrctary (PAS) at The National Treasury. Prior to his current
appointment, Mr. Wangusi was th(] Director of Administration al the State

Dcpartmclt for Imnigration. He has served in a similar capacity at the State

Departments for: Social Protection, Industrialisation, lrade and, Public
Scrvice, Youth & Gcndcr. He is also trained in corporate govemance.

Mr. Wangusi has also sened on various Boards as an Altemate Direclor to
the Principal Secrelary. 'I'hese include: Bukuru Agricultural College Board,
Special Programme on the Natfunal Cereals and Produce Board, Micro
Small Enterprises Authority and, Kcnya Shipyard Limited.

IX
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Prof.Arch.Paul Mrringa Mwangi
CBS

Principal Secretary -State Department
of Roads -Ministry ofRoads and

Transport.
Up to 2'd December 2022

ProlArch.Paul Mwangi Maringa. born in 1959, and holds Bachelor of
Architectur€ Degree University of Nairobi l9?9- t g86,Masters of Anri in
Planning-Urban &Regional planning University of Nairobi 1989-1990: and
Doctor of Philosophy- Environmental Planning, Jomo Kenyatta University
of Agriculture and Technology 1999-2005.

He was the Principal Secretary State Depanment of infrastructure -Ministry
of Transport, Infrastmcture, Housing & Urban Development and Public
Works and previous Principal Secretary, State Depanment ofPublic Works
having been appointed in December 2015.

Prof.Arch.Maringa is a Founder Associat€ Professor of Architecture and
Planning of the FAIID, Senior Expert, Planning & Project Management and
Technical Expert & Master Trainer in Building Construction & Infrastructural
Plarning & Development.

Eng. Joseph Mbugul
Principal Secretary -State Department

ofRoads -Ministry ofRoads and
Transport.

From 2od December 2022

t

Eng. Joseph Mbugua was born in 1962 and is the immediate former Regional
Director Kenya Rural Roads Authortiy.Eng. Mbugua is a registered
professional Engineer with Engineers Board ofKenya (EBK) and a Corporate
Member ofthe Institution ofEngineers ofKenya (MIEK). He holds a BSC in
Civil Enginecring from University ofNairobi. He is a Strategic Manager who
has successfully risen in ranks to be a highly capable change-agent
consistently refining and revitalizing strategies. initiating changes and
facilitating solutions driven by tcam collaboration within the Public Sector.

Hc is extensively trained in Strategic Leadership Development. Senior
Management, Highway Developmcnt Managemen(, Contract Management.
Labour Based Road Construction and Maintenance, Quality Management
Systems and Master Certificate in Project Malagement. He has valuable
experience in policy formulation, planning, design, construction and
managemcnt ofpro1ects and programs gained from his working experience in
Public Service for over 30 years and trained in corporate govemance

Eng Mbugua is a Non-Executive Member of the Board of Management ficr
Thogoto Teachers College, Moi Girls Kamangu Secondary School and
Kikuw Township Primary School

Eng. Stephen Kogi
Altematc to Principal Secretary- State

Depanment of Roads - Ministry of
Roads and Transpon.

Eng. Stephen K Kogi was bom in 1964 and is the alternate to the ths Principal
Secretary, State Department of Infrastructure department in the Ministry of
Roads and Transport from June 2020. He is currently the Chief Engineer in
charge of infrastructure quality standards and research in the Ministry

He has extensive experience in professional and public administration,
including strategic leadenhip and corporate govemance gained from his
training and responsibilities in the different programmes and mandates in
govemment and as a graduate of Civil Engineering from the University of
Nairobi and a Master's degree of Business Administration from Jomo
Kenyatta University of Agriculture and Technology.

He has previously coordinated the improvernent of roads under vanous
development paflners and the development of policies including the design
guidelines in suppon of the Government agenda for the improvenrent ofover
10,000Km road nctu,ork under the l-orv Volume Sealed Roads Programme

He has been involved in various local and international forums and is the
current President of the African Road and Transport Research Forum with a

membership of the Sub Saharan African countries

x



Mr.Julius Korir EBS
Principal Secretary, Ministry of

Devolution.
Upto 2"d December 2022

Mr. Julius Korir, CBS, u'as the Principal Sccretary, Ministry of Dcvolutton

Prior to this appointment, he $as the l'rincipal Secretary in the State

Department for Youth AtTairs, Ministry of Information, Communication and
1'echnology, Innovalion and Youth Affairs.

Mr. Korir has also previously sen'ed as the Principal secretary in the Statc
Depanment for Infrastructure, Ministry ofTransport, Infrastructure, I"lousing,

Urban Development and Public Works, and in the Ministry of Health.

He was first appointed as a Principal Secretary on l8th December, 2015 to
the State Department for lnvestment and Industry, Ministry of Industry. Trade
and Cooperatives.

Mr. Korir has bcen instrumental in promoling improved livclihoods lbr the
Youth by ensuring they have access to decent jobs. entrepreneurship and skills
development and mentorship in addition to encouraging the youth to cxploit
their talents for economic gain.

IIis cxperience extends to managing Public/Private Pannership (PPP)

ini(iatives, bringing togcther Public and Private Scctor Stakeholders. l{is
wealth of experience has seen him spearheading the Contractor Facilitated
Road Development Mechanism. This entails Design-Finance-Build and

Transfer PPP Framework of the Roads Annuity Programnle.

He is keen on enterprise devclopment and has vast experience in the fields of
country promotion, particularly Foreign Direct Investment (FDI), exports and

tourism with a view to enhancing economic growth in Kenya.

Mr. Korir has been involved in managing a Iarge portfolio ofGovernment and
Developmcnt Partner Funded Projects that are spread throughout the Kenya.

Mr. Korir holds an MBA in Intemational Business and a BSc. in Agricultural
Economics

Ms.I'eresia Mbaika
Principal Secretary. Ministry of

Devolution.
From 2nd December 2022

Ms Teresia Mbaika Makrkwe Was bom in 1986. Ms Teresia holds a Master
of Scicnce degree in Ilcalth Economics, obtained from thc University of
Nairobi and a Bachelor of Science degrce in Environmental Health from
Kenyatta Univcrsity

ln June 2018, 1'eresia was appointed to the board ofdirectors at the National
Environment Management Authority ofKenya. Ms Teresia was a member of
the eleven-person board ofdirectors at the Kenya Nuclear Electricity Board.
While therc, she chairs the Finance and General Purpose committec.

In January 2014, she scned as a board mcmber al Beams Construction &
Supplies Limited, a Nairobi-based construction conrpany. She has also
rvorked at the Kaiti Constituency NG-CI)F since Junc 2013. Iler duties
included overseeing financial management, corporate govemancc and

compliancc at the government agency.

Mr. K€nnedy Nyambati
Al(crnate to Principal Secretary

Ministry of Devolution
Upto 4m June 2021

Mr.Kennedy Nyambati is a Dircctor Capaci(y Building and Technical

Assistancc in the Ministry of Dcvolution. Mr. Nyanbati rvas bom in 1966

and hold a Bachelor of Arts (Sociology) from University of Nairobi and

Master in Public Sector Managemcnt from the Africa University,

Zimbabu,e.

Director Nyambati is well vcrsed in Public Sector Managcment, Govemance
and l-eadershipt Public t'olicy Analysis: Performance Managcment:
Programme & Projcct Management; Diplomacy & Negotiationsi Straregic
Planning & Managenrent: Human Resource Management; Regional
Cooperation & Integration; Devolution Affairs; Inter-Govemmental
Rclations; Capacity Building & Technical Assistancc and trained in corporate
govemance.

XI



Ms. Margaret Akiring Osilli
Altemate to Principal Secretary

Ministry of Devolution
From 4d June 2023

Ms Margaret Osilli is an Assistant Direclor Devolution Affairs . She is an
accountinS professional with management skills and expertise in financial
management. Ms Osilli was bom in l9?4.

Ms.Osilli is a Cenified Public Accountant and holds a Ccrtificate in Strategic
Leadership Development Programme. She has over 20 years' experience in
cash managemcnt, procuremenl, intemal, controls, budgeting, financial
reporting and analysis. Sh€ was the pan ofthe secretariat of The 9th Africitics
Summit between 0l /2022 - 0512022 and Kenya Devolution Support Progranr
belwecn 0l/2016 - 0112021, member of thc lnter Agency Working
Committee on County Own Source Revenuc

She possesses exceptional interpersonal and management skills. She has
u,orked for various institutions including Malaba Town Council, Busia
County Council, Nairobi City Council, Kisumu City Council, and county
qovemment of Kisumu.

Ms.Netly Mbugua OGW
lnslitutiorl of Surveyors

OfKenya
Upto 2"d Oclober, 2022

Ms. Nelly Mbugua was bom in 1968 and holds Bachelor of Ans in Land
Economics from the University of Nairobi, Master of Science in Prqect
Management , a posGgraduate diploma with the Institution of Suneyors of
Kenya and currently pursuing her Post Graduate studies. Nelly has worked
for top real estate companies in Kenya among them; Lloyd Masika Ltd and
Kenya Valuers & Estate Agents Ltd where shc has held senior management
positions. She has trained in Corporate Govemance.

She was the Chairperson of Board lluman Resource and Administration
Committee Ms. Nelly has vast experience in (he real estate industry
consultancy, with local and international Registration and licensing by the
Valuers Registration Board (VRB) and the Royal Institution of Chartered
Surveyon (RICS). Ne lly is a full member of the Institution of Surve yors of
Kenya (ISK) and has served the Institution as VEMS Chapter Chairperson
and a member ofthe governing Council. Nelly is a rcgistered estate agent and
is the immediatc past Chairperson of the Estate Agents Registration Board
(EARB). As the Chairperson of EARB, Nclly worked tirelessly (o improve
professionalism and raise the profile of estate agency profession in Kenya.
She is a Trustee ofthe Bible Society of Kenya (BSK). and a past Chairperson
ofthe Board of BSK.

Ms.Nelly is a seasoned valuer, specializing in business and hospitality
industry and oil and gas exploration valuation, as wcll sales, letting and
property management. Ms Nelly is a director at Citiscape Valuers & Estate
Agents Limited.

Prof. Lawrence Esho
Kenya Institute of Planners

Upto 2'd October. 2022

Prof. l-awrence Esho was bom in 1970 and is a holder of Bachelor of Arts
(BA) Sociology Kenyalta University(Kenya) 1995, Master of Architecture
(M.Arch) Human Settlement from Catholic University of Leuven(Belgium)
2003,Masters of Ans (MA Planning Univenity Of Nairobi Kenya 1997

,Doctor Of Engineering (Dr-lng), Architecture/Spatial Planning Frou
Catholic University of Leuven(Kul)(tlelgium) 2008.

He was the Chairperson ofthe Board Audit Cornminee

He is trained in sociology, planning and human settlements. He has worked
as a planner and an academic. He is Chairman, Department of Urban and
Regional Planning at the Technical University ofKenya.
Laurence has researched various aspccts of housing, transport and planning
in the region and continues to collaborate in research with a number of
ins(itutions, including KU Leuven, HIS the Netherlands.

I(



CPA Caroline Waithira Ndung'u
Council ofGovemers
From 206 June 2023

CPA Caroline Ndungu holds Bachelor of Arts in Economics degree from

University of Nairobi , Advanced Management Programme, Strathmore

Business SchooUIESE Business School, Barcelona, ES and a Member

Institute of Certified Public Accountant of Kenya.(tCPAK) .CPA Caroline

was bom in 1971.

CPA Caroline is cenified in Women Directors Leadenhip Programme, from

Strathmore Business SchooVCranfield University, 20l8,Certificate of
Strategic Analysis & Choices, Cranfield University, 2007 , Diageo Way of
Brand Building (Trainer & Training), 2005

CPA Caroline has over 2Syears experience in the Corporate world in various

capacities and is an expert in Strategic Planning ,Performance Management,

Business Development , Training and Development, Financial Management,

Stakeholder Management Project & Program Management .

Some of her selected achievements include the successfully uansition of the

Barclays brand to Absa over a period of three years, Define the Jubilee

lnsurance brand and create a strong affinity brand in the eyes ofconsumers.

Eng, Yego Kiprutto Shedrack
Institution of Engineers of Kenya

Upto 2"d October, 2022

Eng. Shadrack Yego was bom in 1980 and he is registered with Engineers

Board of Kenya as a professional engineer and a corporate member of the

Institution of Engineers of Kenya (MIEK).

Eng. Shadrack Yego holds Bachelor of Science degree in Civil engineering

from University of Nairobi. He has over fifteen ( l5) years of experience in
carrying out engineering feasibility studies, infiastnrcture assessments,

preliminary and detailed studies and designs, contracls administration and

construction supervision of engineering projects in the held of roads, dams,

water and sanitation and buildings.

Eng Shadrack was the Chairperson of Board Finance committee and Board

Technical Committee and has passion in giving back to the community and

a champion ofcorporate govemance and continues to hold leadership mantle

in various private institutions. Eng Shadrack has a good and strong blend of
the Govemment ofKenya systems, private sector and United Nations working
environment. In addition, Eng Shadrack has experience working in similar
projects in ASAL and hardship areas in Kenya, Tanzania, Burundi and

Somalia.

Eng. Dorcas Mutheu Musingi
Institution of Enginecrs of Kcnya

From 20n June 2023

Eng Dorcas is holder of Bachelors of Technology (BTech) degree and a

Master ofPhilosophy Degrce in Civil Engineering both from Moi University
and is Registered Member of Engineers Board ofKenya (EBK) and Institute

of Engineers ofKenya(tEK) Eng. Dorcas Mutheu Musingi was bom in 1978.

Eng. Dorcas has over 20 years experience in various capacities. Currently is
a lecturer at Technical University of Mombasa (TUM) and is involved in

developing curriculum, developing course material, conducting rescarch and

writing papers and Journals. Eng. Dorcas is also well versed in Corpora(e

governance.

Eng. Dorcas has served as committee member for IEK as Coast Branch Vice

Chairperson, Syllabus Revicw cornmittee for TUM and organizing Secretary

of coast Kamba Professionals.

xIt
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Mr.Alvln Kibet Klrul MBS
Kcnya Farmers Association

Eng. Philemon K.Ksndi€ MBS
Director GeneraVSecretary to thc

Board

Mr Ah'in Kirui was born in 1993 and holds and Bachelors of Elusiness
Information Technology Degree from Jomo Kenya Unil'ersity ofAgriculture
and Technology and has successfirlly complcted the investing in Agribusiness
Value Addition programme from Strathmore University.

Mr. Alvin is a Membcr of the Micro and Small Enterprise Tribunal
representing SME Sector under the Judiciary, whose mandate is scttlement of
commercial disputes. He is a Founding Director of Tekelbei Water
Foundation, a non state actor wilh a goal ofproviding water storage facilities
fbr rural l'armers, providing farmers with market inlbmration, and clinrate
adaplivc farming stralegies. Mr Alvin also leads the East Sotik Co-operative
Society which deals with value addition to dairy farmcrs

Eng. Philemon Kandie was born in l97l and is a regislered engineer rvith
Engineers Board of Kenya and a member of the lnsttution of Engineers of
Kenya (MIEK).

Eng. Kandie holds BSc. Hons in Civil Engineering from Jomo Kenyatta
University of Agriculture & Technology and Diploma in Transport Planning,
Development & Management from Galilee Managemenl lnstitule (lsrael),
Master of Science in Road Management & Engineering from thc University
of Birmingham in United Kingdom, I{c has been extensively trained in
Managenrent lnfrastructure embracing Road Asset Management and has
valuable experience in policy formulation. planning, design, construction and
management ofprojects and programs gained from his working experience in
Public Service for over 24 years.

lle worked in the Ministry ofRoads and Kcnya National Highways Authority
as Regional Manager in various stations and promoted to Regional Network
Coordinator in headquarters. lle is a Regislcred Professional Engineer with
lingineers Board of Kenya and a Corporate Mcmber of lnstitution of
Engineers of Kenya.

Eng. Kandie holds leadership ponfolios in and oul ef the Authority and a

membcr of various commitlees amongst them. Road Sector Invcstment Plan.
Rcview ofRoad Classification. Performance Based Contracts and Roads 2000
Sllategy Implementalion.
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Eng. Philemon K.Krndie MBS
P. Eng., B scHons, M I E K, MSc

Director C,€nersl

Eng. Peter P. Gichohi
P.Eng., MSc BSc., MIEK, A(CIAB)
Director Road Asset Managemen[

CPA Dan Manyasi
MBA,BCom,CPA(K)

Dire ctor -C orpo rate S emi ce s

Eng. Jackson K, Magondu
P. Eng., M( B L) B Sc., MI E K,A(C IArb- UK)

Director Development

Eng. Julius K. Gakubia
P.Eng., BSc., MIEK

Ag Director- Research, Strateg) &
Compliance

Eng. Enock A. Kombo
P. Eng., MA(P lanning), B s c,MI E K

Direclor -Planning , Design & Environment

CPA Judith C. Chumo
Bco m, MBA, C PA (K),CI SA, CIQA
Deputy Director - Internal Audit
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Revenues 2022-2021

Total Revenu ei 65,470,123( KSh'000')

Donor 454,430 -- Others 904,183

. RMLF . GOK . Donor . Others

Total RMLF: 26,409,596(Ksh'00d)

. 10% Critical l-ink Roads . 10% Sp€cial Albcation . 22% Constituency Roads Fund . RMLF Operations
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It is my pleasure to present the Kcnya Rural Roads Authority Financial

Statements for the year endcd 30'h June 2023.

'l-he Board during the period in rcview provided fiduciary oversight on all l he

Authority road financing activities and operations. Customcr-ccntricity is
significant in growing large customer base and improving the needs and
preferences olcustomers. The Authority adopted client-centered approach
in the organization to disscct the nceds and prefercnccs of its customers.
This has enabled thc Authority to excellently meet and oxcecd the demands

and expectations of its customers. The Authority conducts customer satisfaction survey
periodically online and verbally to foster customer satisfaction through dissection of customer
feedbacks and making instant improvement.

The Authority is accelerating immense economic growth through "last mile connectivity" aimed

at opening up rural Kenya. Among the various projects being undertaken by the Authority for

economic transformation which are a boost to the primary growth sectors of the economy include

upgrading of ncw roads and bridges, periodic and routine maintcnance of roads, road

reconstruction and rehabilitation, road safety and axlc load monitoring. The Authority therefore

is a critical comerstone facilitating the achievement of the Govemment's Bottom-Up Economic

Transfonnation Agenda.

The country has made significant political and economic reforms that have contributed
to sustained economic growth, social development, and political stability gains over the past

decade. Political stability is crucial to foster investor confidence in Kenya's economy. However,
key development challenges still remain among them poverty, inequality, youth unemployment,
climate change, continued weak private sector investment, and the vulncrability of the economy
to intcmal and extemal shocks.

Kenya has a robust PPP Act that helps in execution ofmega projects in the country. Additionally,
it has some of the bcst legal legislation aimed at enhancing businesses in the country. This has

helpcd the country to rank favourably in the World Bank Ease of Doing Business. There has been
increased govemment's efforts to establish vocational training institutions to produce skilled
labour force on a need basis. Fu(her, there has been increased financing of SMEs which are the
driving force for Kenya's construction industry thereby fostering a successful construction
industry.

Not only was our staff highly engaged in FY 202212023, they also delivered excellent customer
service and operational performance for the Authority. The Management Team continued to put
in extra effort to maintain the Authority's cultivated culture of high perfonnance and high
engagement, as evidenccd by our continucd strong scores in lhe FY 202112022 Performance
Contract. Our unique vantage point at the intersection of finance, strategy, and performancc,
allowed us to fully support the managemcnt team in defining a suite of new measures and

initiatives that rcflect the Board's innovativc and forward-looking priorities.

I wish to extend my sincere appreciation to the various Committecs of the Board and the Board
of Directors for rising to thr: occasion, individually and sevcrally for abiding to souud corporatc
govcmance principles and providing policy guidance to Management with strict adhcrence to
policies and standard opcrating procedures. I remain grateful to the Authority's Managcment and
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staff for their dedication and cornrnitnent in quality service delivery as I look forward to FY
202312024, that together the staffwill deliver even greater performance.

e

MProf. (Eng.) eche, EBS

Chalroerson - Board of Directors

xtx



Ir t n rrt R u rrtl li r,,r,l' I u rh,,rtrt
lnnttrl ll, 1t,'t t ,rt,l I intn, i,tl \r,tr, tnt,tr'

I |t rh, rt rtt , tl,,l ltl' ljt , :t] \;

Rr_ PO R'r' O[''t't I t. Dt tit_c't'oR G r] N r. R.\ r _

On behalf of the Kenya Rural Roads Authority, I am pleased to provide tl
financial year 202212023 Financial Statements. This culminates to our financiar
management for the year aiming at accurately tracking and disclosing our
financial status, and to ensure that the Authority continues to act as a good

steward of public funds. It's a presentation of the statements in relation to our
mission and the resources entrusted to us.

Despite the inadequate budgetary allocations, the Authority remained

resilient to achievement of its core activities. In particular, it upgraded

292kms against a target of 273kms, routinely maintained 23,646kms against a target of
23,231kms, periodically maintained l28kms against a targel of l27kms and

reconstructed/rehabilitated 57kms of roads in the year under review. Further, the Authority
continued to implement all the presidential directives as issued from time to time and particularly
on fast-tracking of implementation of ongoing road development projects and growing of
15,000No. trees at designated forests (Murinduko Hill, Njukine Forest in Kirinyaga County) in
collaboration with Kenya Forest Service and in road camps, The Authority Regional Offices and

along edges ofroad reserves in conjunction with stakeholders.

The Authority takes cognizance of the legal requirement for women, youth and persons with
disabilities to access 30% of Govemment Procurement opportunities being implemented within
the context of the AGPO program. The aim of the AGPO program is to facilitate the enterprises

owned by women, youth and persons with disabilities to be able to participate in Govemment

opportunities. In particular, the Authority empowered this special category by awarding Kshs.

5,624,651 ,847 (against a target of Kshs. 5,390,685,648) worth of contracts for enterprises owned

by these groups aimed at empowering them by giving them more opportunities to do business

with Govemment.

Further, the Authority developed an Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) System to integrate

intemal business processes towards enhancing accurate forward planning, data reliability and

regulatory compliance. The following Modules were developed in the year: Finance, Human

Resource, Pagoll and Legal. In addition, the following ICT portals were developed: E-

procurement portal, Employee service portal and roadside development approval E-service portal.

The automation of intemal audit process is ongoing.

Additionally, the Authority successfully rolled out a mechanism of handling visitors through a

Visitors Management System in the year under review. This has enabled time saving and

productivity improvement, better data collection, visitors privacy, organizational security and

improved professional image.

Moreover, the Authority engaged 273No. industrial youth intemships/attachments (against a

target of 240No.) with a main aim of putting into practice the theory and technical skills leamt in
the Iecture room and expected to create useful linkages with captains of industry having a general

feel of the industry. The students got an opportunity to gain industrial experience and workplace
skill sets.

Increasingly, if a public institution isn't committed to fair and effective complaints resolution, it
risks destroying clients value and lose customers confidence. The Authority handled amicably all
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l27No. complaints received in the year. At the Authority, customer resolution has become a more

crucial measure of corporate worth and an instrument for winning and maintaining customer trust

eaming their loyalty.

The Authority faced numerous challenges resulting to low absorption levels. In the year under

review, low absorption levels were as a result of delays in procurement and project

implementation; Iate exchequer disbursements fiom the National Treasury; and frequent changes

of workplans by Constituency Roads Committees (CRCs). Some of the challenges were

exogenous to the Authority's control and particularly the late disbursement ofexchequer releases.

For example, the Authority received Kshs l8.3Biltion on 29th June, 2023 (tail-end of financial
year) which was almost halfoftotal receipts undermining anticipated 100% absorption levels.

Kenya's economy remains resilient due to its diversification and low dependency on natural
resources for export, and the positive outlook for construction supported by the expectation ofthe
govemment aggressively pushing for public-private partnerships (PPPs) to attract private
investment. The revised PPP Act 202'1, is expected to accelerate investments through PPP
arrangements.

GDP from Construction in Kenya increased to 146,784 Kshs. Million in the first quarter of 2023
fiom 145,649 Kshs. Million in the fourth quarter of 2022 (Source: Kenya National Bureau of
Statistics). This also depicts a positive future outlook for the construction industry.

The achievements within the financial year can be attributed to the support, firm guidance and
the positive direction given by the Board of Directors. Moreover, the dedication, innovation and
commitment to duty by the Authority staff made it possible for Management to perform and
achieve to the expectation of the Board and other stakeholders without difficult.

The Authority also counted on the critical and invaluable cooperation and support from our
stakeholders, the Ministry of Roads and Transport and The National Treasury and Planning for
their distinguished role in helping us achieve our mandate through both policy and budgetary
support. In addition, our appreciation goes to development partners (KfW, AfD, BADEA and EU)
and related road agencies for their continued support and partnerships.

-#-!*
Eng. Philemon K. Kandie, MBS
Director General
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Section 8l Subsection 2 (f1 of the Public Finance Management Act, 2012 requires the accounting officer to include in the financial statement, a statement of the

national governrnent entity's performance against predetermined objectives.

Kenya Rural Roads Authority has 5 strategic pillars and objectives within its Strategic Plan for the FY 2018/2019- 202212023. The achievements of strategic

pillars were as follows:

Strateqic Obiective l: To increrse the nationsl secondary trunk road network under bitumen
Design roads to support
accessibility to all production,
market and social centres' for
enhanced economic growth

962.0 kml. Roads designed To design 912.0 km of rural road
network

a

To upgrade 22.0 ls of rural roads
network to bitumen standards

Open up rural roads to reduce
transport cost and journey
time-

a 16.6 kn2. New roads constructed under
Conventional approach (Km)

91.5 kmMaintenance of Roads under
Amuity Program (Km)

3 To upgTade 91.5 km of rural roads
network to bitumen standards

Open up rural roads to reduce
transporl cost and joumey
time.

Open up rural roads to reduce
transpoa cost and joumey
time.

o 5.0 Km4. New roads upgnded under Roads
2000 Program - LVSR (Km)

To upgrade 5.0 lan of rural roads
network to bitumer standards

a

To upgrade 246.0 km of rural roads
n€twork to bitumen standards

Open up rural roads to reduce
transport cost and journey
time-

270.0 KmNew roads constructed under
Roads 10,000 Program (Km)

5

To construct 4 No. bridges Design and construct bridges
to support accessibility to all
productiorl market and social
certers' for enhanced
economic growth

3 No. ConstructedBridges Constructed Program
(Number)

6

Strategic Objective 2: To improve maintenance and rehabilitation of the national secondary trunk roid network
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To carry out periodic maintenance of
I 27.0 km of rural road network

Well maintained roads o 128.1 km7. Periodic maintenance (km)

To rehabilitate 57.0 km of rural road
netrvork

Well rnaintained rural roads 5 7.2 km8 Roads reconstructed and
rehabilitated (km)

o 69 No. nual roads monitored for
axle loading.

9. Axle load monitoring To monitor 45 No. rural roads for axle
loading

Safeguarding rural roads
lnvestment

Well maintained and
Motorablc rural roads

23.5 54.5 krn Maintained10. Roads Maintenance under
RMLF'-Routine

'fo Maintain 23.139.0Kni of rural road

I l. Technical Audits Undertake 30.No. Technical Audits lmprove Quality of Roadsa 30 No. technical audits undertaken

Strategic Objective 3: To develop road Management plans and systems

To Map 1,246.0 Km of road reserves Safeguard Road Asset from
encroachmenl

l,246Km road reserve mapped12. Road Reserves Mapping

Report on traffic count at l00o/o

census points.
a13. Traffic census o Traffic count report at [00% census points Traffic census data for

planning and desigr purposes

Strate gic Obiective 4: 'l'o Enhance Sen'ice Delive rv
14. Implementation of Citizens'

Service Delivery Charter
. Carry Out customer Service Charler

Surveillance Audit in l2 Regions

o Sensitized 300 No. Staffon the Customer
Service Charler and the Service Charter.

Improved customer Care

Informed citizens Carried out customer Servrce
Charter Suweillance Audit in 13

Regions
342No.Staff sensilized on the
Customer Service Charter and the
Service Charter has been cascaded
and circulated to all 47 Regional
Offices as per the guidelines
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15. Application of Service Delivery
Innovations

o Leverage on and enhance use of
Information and Communicalions
Technology (lCT) and other
innovations in service delivery

. Train at least 100 technical
officers (Engineers & CROs)
on the iRMS module already
developed in the ERP.

. Scaling up the regional
internet connectivity from the
current 4Mbps to lOMbps for
all the 47 regional offices

. lmplement the virtual private
network technology (VPN) to
supporl remote working for at
least 400 staff at the
Authority.
Upgrading both the primary

and secondary data centres to
ensure continuous availability
of IT services to both intemal
and extemal Stakeholders

KeRRA Board of Directors.
Senior Management and over
200 Engincers trained on the
iRMS module in February and
March 2023
Wide Area Network and
lntemet Upgrade has been done
lor Head Office and the Regions
4l I No. users cumulatively have
been provided VPN access (iv)
Both Primary and Secondary
Datacenter upgrades have been
done and completed

a

16, Resolution of Public
Complaints

Resolve all public complaints o Satisfied public o Resolved all public complaints for the
quarter and forwarded report to CAJ
in the prescribed format

Strategic Objective 5: To enhance Corporate Governance
17. Develop capacity ofthe Board Five (5) trainings for the Board:

o Board Audit fusk and Governance
Committee

o Board Human Resource Committee
o Board Technical Committee
o Full Board retreat
o Board Finance Committee.

. Undertake Board trainings o Enhance capacity for the New Board.
Undeaook Fou(4) Board Trainings.
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The Board provides oversight to management who are responsible for the day to day running of
the organization and emphasizes on principles ofgood Corporate Govemance in the discharge of
its mandate. The Board has 4 committees through which it discharges its mandate and is evaluated
annually by SCAC. The positions of Chairman and Director General are held by different persons,

as stipulated in the Mwongozo Code of Corporate Govemance for State Corporations.The Board
and management have been trained on the Mwongozo Code of Corporate Govemance for State
Corporations.

Organization structure of the Authority

The Kenya Rural Roads Authority is govemed by a Board of Directors as per Kenya Roads Act
2007. The day to day management of the Authority is carried out by the Director General who is
also secretary to the board. The Authority carries its mandate through the following Directorates
and Departments.

a) Directorate of Development
b) Directorate of Road Asset Management
c) Directorate of Research, Strategy & Compliance
d) Directorate of Planning, Design and Environment
e) Directorate of Corporate Services
f) Directorate of Audit Services.
g) Corporation Secretary/ Legal Affairs Department
h) Supply Chain Management Department.

Appointments to the Board

Appointments to the Board are carried out pursuant to section 8 ofthe Kenya Roads Act 2007.
The Chairman of the Board is appointed by the President of the Republic of Kenya. Members of
the Board are appointed by the Cabinet Secretary, Ministry of Roads and Transpo( on
recommendation of the various nominating institutions provided for under the Kenya Roads Act
2007.

Board Organization and structure

The composition ofthe Board is as per the provisions ofSection 8 ofthe Kenya Roads Act 2007.
The Board is composed of representatives of relevant Govemment Ministries and private sector
as represented by the various nominating bodies and is independent of management. The Board
has set up Four standing committees to discharge its oversight role.

The role of the Board

The role of the Board is to provide strategic direction and oversight to management in the running
of the Authority's affairs.

Activities of the Board

It is the responsibility ofthe Chairman and the Secretary to work closely together in planning the
annual program and agendas for meetings. The Board is required to meet at least four times a
year and the meetings are structured to allow open discussion. All substantive agenda items have
comprehensive briefing papers, which are circulated well in advance.
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ln addition to regular Board meetings, there are a number of other meetings to deal with specific
matters. When directors are unable to attend a meeting, they are advised of the matters to be
discussed and given an opportunity to make their views known to the Chairman or the Director
General prior to or after the meeting.

During the period under consideration, the Board had various meetings to deliberate on lssues

affecting the Authority. The Board also made several site visits to launch and inspect vanous
projects being undertaken by the Authority. An evaluation of the Board was also carried out
during the period.

Bosrd Effectiveness

The Board is sufficiently independent of management and performs its functions in a way to
enhance Board effectiveness. To further enhance effectiveness, the directors have been trained
on various issues on Corporate Govemance and Mwogozo code ofconduct

The table below indicates Board meeting attendance for the period 1.7.2022 - 30.6.2023

'The renure for Dirlrcrors Ms. Nclly Mbugua. OCW, Proi t-awrcnce Esho and Eng Shadrack Kipruuo Yogo mded on 2 October, 2022

"Direclor CPA Maryaret Osilli lmk officc in Junc, 2l)21 rr?lacing Dimtor Mr Kcnnedy Nyambati

Board Committees

In line with the provisions of the Kenya Roads Act 2007, the Board established four Standing
Committees. These are Board Finance Committee, Board Human Resources Committee, Board
Audit, Risk & Governance Committee and Board Technical Committee. The committees are
provided with all necessary resources to enable them to undertake their duties in an effective
manner.

Board Audit, Risk & Governance Committee

The Board Audit Committee was established in accordance with the provisions of Treasury
Circular No 16. of 25. The Board receives reports from the Audit Committee. The lnternal
Audit function reports directly to the Board Audit Committee and is independent of
management operations. The Board has a responsibility ofensuring the Authority has adequate
systems and processes of accounlability, risk management and intemal controls and the lnternal
Audit does provide an enterprise assurance ofthe functional areas in reference to responsibility
attributed to the Board.

Prof. (Eng.) qruko Mbeche,
EBS

2 Eng. Stephen Kogi, OGW

l Ms. Nelly Mbugus, OGw

4 lltr. Kenned!' N).mbrti

5 Prof. Llwrencc Esho

6 Eng. Shrdrrck Kiprutto Yego

1 Mr. Alvin Kibet Kirui, MBS

8 Ms. zihr! Hsji

CPA Mrrgrret Osilli
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Board Finance Committee

The committee meets on Quarterly basis. The committee assists the Board in its oversight role of
the Authority relating to Authority's finance matters. This is as per the committees Terms of
Reference.

Board Human Resource Committee

The committee assists the Board in its oversight role of the Authority relating to Authority's
human resource matters. This is as per the committees Terms of Reference.

Board Technica! Committee

The committee assists the Board in its oversight role of the Authority's function relating to the
technical issues relating to the Authority's mandate. This is in terms of the desigrr, construction
and maintenance of roads under the Authority's mandate.

Board and Member Performance

The Board undertakes a self-performance evaluation every year. The performance evaluation is
facilitated by the oversight body (State Corporations Advisory Committee). The evaluation helps
in improving the performance of the Board.

Board Remuneration

Members of the Board are remunerated in accordance with the policy of the Govemment of
Kenya as communicated from time to time.

Conflict of interest

Directors are required to disclose to the Board any real or potential conflict ofinterest that comes
to the attention of the Directors. This requirement was observed during the reporting period.

Ethics and governance audit

The Board subjects the organization to a Govemance audit by a member regulated by the Institute
of Certified Public Secretaries ofKenya and accredited for the purpose.

DIRECTO

xxv



htn.t u Rrtrtl R,,tl: lrthtitt
lnnutl R,'port tnl I intntiul Sultutnt:
I rtr thc rttr tnltl llft' .l n! )ll) l
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND AI{ALYSIS
The entity's operational and firancial performance

The National Govemment's commitment continues to be seen through the improved budgetary
allocation to the road sector. In the period under review, the Authority received a total of64.34
Billion against a budget allocation 65.19 Billion for the full financial year.

The graph below indicates our funding over the last five financial periods.

tunding History
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2018-2019

896,320

15,926,623

31,263,912

2019-2020

1,018,506

23,781,150

65,770,188

2020-2021

71,513

22,115,430

40,872,115

202r-2012

520,945

27,725,651

36,959,142

2022-2023

454,430

26,409,596

37,701,914
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Funds Absorption.

In this financial year the Authority achieved a funds absorption rate of 63.12% of all the funds
available at its disposal. This is a decline of 3% compared to the previous financial period. This
was due Delays in formation of CRC Committees, Late Exchequer disbursements from National
Treasury, Executive order of transactions of above Ksh 50 Million
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'Funds Absorption is based on cash balances available for the period. lt is calculated by adding OpeninS C.sh Balance and total Receipts less

closing cash Ealance and compared totalfunds available.

RMLF Fund Output Performtnce

In the period under review the Authority maintained 23,554.5 kn ofRoads. The table below indicates

the performance of the RMLF over time

RMLF Funds

!
.;
.g

27,OOO

26,000

25,000

24,000

23,000

22,0@

21,000
2022-2021

Entity's compliance with statutory requirements

The Authority has complied with all statutory requirernents externally imposed throughout the

Period. There are no major noncompliance issues that may expose the authority to potential

contingent liabilities.

2021-2022

Period
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Key projects rnd investment decisions the entity is planning/implementing

The Authority has an ongoing portfolio of 8,249 Kms of contracts under reconstnrction and

Upgrading worth Kshs. 362 Billion with 3501 Kms expected to be completed within the next
three years at total cost ofKshs. 171 Billion. The bulk of the contracted works falls under the
Roads 10,000 low volume sealed roads progranrme

Major risks facing the entity

The major risks that the Authority is exposed to are reported on the note 28 ofthis report

Material srresrs in stetutory/finrncial obligetions

The Authority is not in arrears in the payment of statutory obligations though it has pending
bills of approximately Ksh 55 billion as at 30t'h June 2023. These have been included as part of
Payables.

The entity's linancial probity and serious governance issues

There has been no reports of financial improbity by the internal audit, external audit nor Other
Government agencies.
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CORPORATE SOCIAI., RESPONSI BILITY STA'TEIII ENT/ SUSTAINABLITY
l. Sustainability strategy and profile
A broad Political, Economic, Social, Tcchnological, Environmental and Legal (PESTEL) scan
was undertaken with a view to describing the circumstances under which the Authority operates
so as to be able to appreciate the factors that will either support or impcde thc process of
lln lementin the Strate ic Plan.

Political Frctors
LStakeholder Engagement . Challenges rvith project planning

and implcmcntation
. Cosl inf'lation due variation

r Adherence to proiect
implenrcntation Guidelines

o Public participation
. Adhercnce to Annual Road Works

Prosram (ARWP)
2.Funding to the Authority
affected by political dynamics

o Low funding level in comparison to
increased demand for better roads

. Additional funding

. Lobby parliament and cabinet
o Stakeholderengagement

3. Multiplicity of players in
policy
development

o Interfcrence u,ith policy
implemcntation

o Conllicting directives Ieading to risk
of non-compliance

. Lobby parliament and cabinct

. Stakeholder engagement

4. Weak institutional leadership o Interference with institutional

8OV€mance
. Panial or total Non-adherence to

policies and guidelines

Uphold Corporate govemance
guidelines
Develop a^ssertive leadership
Capacity building

5. Prolonged political activity . Interl'erence u,ith project
implcmentation

o Gaps in leadcrship and direction

. Adherence to project
implemcntation

o guidelines
. Engagcment with rclevant

stakeholders

Ecotromic Factors
I .Lack ofadequate funds Maintenance backkrg (increased

road asset deterioration)
High vehicle operating costs
High road user cosls
Reduced nctwork irnprovement
High cosl of intcrest pa).rnents

Increase RMI-F allocalions
. [.obby lirr enhanced cxtcmal
funding
. [ixplore altemative options of
funding
. Increascd collaboration $ith
external
. partners

2.Fiscal and Monetary Policies . High taxation
o Inflation
. High cost offuel and road work

materials
. Limitations to line budgetary

items

. Monitoring and review ofpolicies
and strategies

o Macroeconomicstability
. Adaptation to changes in fiscal

policy

3.Regional economic disparitics . I)iscrcpancies in economic
empo\\'emlcnt among counties
(Marginalizcd areas)
r Skewed regional competitive

advanlagc.

o lncreascd Equalization fund
. Incrcased l:quitable 109'" RMLI:
r Standardisa(ion and hannonisation

Social Factors
l.Road Rcserve []ncroachnrent Incrcascd accideots

I-oss of livelihoods
Increased proiect costs

. Road rescn e demarcation

. Public sqnsitization

. Stakeholder engagement
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I Iostility
Interltrence *ith project
implemcntation

2.Poor adherence to axle load
limits

r Costly maintena[ce ofroads
r Reduced road lifespan

. Public sensitization

. Enforcement ofaxle load limits

. Periodic road design reviews

. Stakeholder engagement

. Effectivcly manage expectations

. Public scnsitization

. [ingagement with stakeholders

. Upholding organizational corc
values

l.Mccting Societal Expectations r Fonnulation and re view oI ARWP
r Fonrrulation and revieu' ofCorporate

Social Responsibility (C'SR) work plan

Technological Factors

. Devclop suitablc ERPs

. Der.clop and implement information
sccurity strategies
. Implcrncnt ISMS

l.Automation and information
security

r IIigh invcstment in ICT systems and
infrastructurc

. l]ffectivl-' inlbrmation security
management

o t:nhanced efliciency and operational
interconnectivity

. lncorporate usage of locally available
materials and labour

. High cost oftransition

. Need for matching staffknowledge
and exposure with technology

o Adaptation oftechnology and
road
construction concepts to
emerging
trends including R2000 &
R10,000

. Monitor obsolescence of
technology
and approaches

. Frequent updates
o Plan for future technological

improvements
. capacity building

2.Emerging technologies io road
construction and ICT

Ecoloqical factors/Environmental

. Develop and implement
annual disaster mitigation and
management strategy
. Enhance works insurance to covet
adverse weather

[.Adverse weather conditions
(fl oods, mudslides, prolonged
rainfall and drought)

Partial or total cut-offof the road
nelwork
Increased frequency and costs of
road and maintenance and
rehabilitation works
Delay in execution ofprojects in
adverse weather and Cost ovemrns
Availability of manpower

Deplelion of natural resclurces

High construc(ion costs

Damagc to economically
productir e land

2.Availability of natural road
construction matcrial

o Research on allema(ive road
conslruction matcrial
. Enrbrace viable enrerging
technologies

2. Environmental Pcrformance Sustainability

Environmental Pcrformance

The Authority is cornmittcd to continuous improvemcnt of environmcntal pcriilrmance by

putting in place strategies and actiorls to eusure that potential ncgativc in.rpacts of its operations

to tho environrnent are minimized. It is thercfore the Authority's commitment to improve human

welfare through thc protection ofnatural capital throughout its operations. An Environmcntal and
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Social Sustainability Policy is in place with its main aim being to guide the Authority in

conforming to the prevailing Government strategies as highlighted in the National Environment

Policy. In accordance with the Policy, the Performance Contracting guidelines and the

requirements of the Environmental Management and Coordination Act, the Authority

implemented the following activities during the 202212023 financial year: -

Measures lo milipate a water. air. noise and other rms o{ ution

Environmental and Social Impact Assessment (ESIA) Studies were finalised and submitted to

NEMA for 39No. Projects. Additionally, the Authority continues to monitor compliance to the

Environmental & Social Management Plans and EIA Licence conditions for the various projects

under implementation, and corrective measures have been employed whenever a non-conformity

is noted.5No. Environmental & Social Audits (ESA) were undertaken to check environment

compliance level for recently completed projects.

Promotins Environmental Protection and Conservation throush Stakeholder Partnerships

The Authority sponsored and participated in the Annual Environmental Conference on 24th -25'h
November, 2022 in Nairobi, the World Wetlands Day (WWD) 2023 National Commemoration

on 2'd February 2023 in Narok County, and the World Environment Day (WED) National

Commemoration on 5th June, 2023 in Nakuru County.

As part of the Authority's efforts to mainstream Environmental & Social Sustainability,

awareness trainings were conducted for Staff both fiom the Headquarters and the 47 KeRRA

Regions.

Tree Plantins Initiatives

The Authority through a Framework for Collaboration with the Kenya Forest Service (KFS) was

allocated five (5) hectares of degraded forest site in Murinduko Hill under Njukini West Forest

Station in Kirinyaga County for adoption and rehabilitation. A total of 10,000 tree seedlings were

planted and are being nurtured through the framework. Further, 5,000 tree seedlings were planted

across the various KeRRA Regions making a total of 15,000. The average Survival Rate is 80%.

The above initiatives are aimed at enhancing the Authority's efforts to manage biodiversity,

ensure sustainable waste management and in the long run minimize the institution's

environmental footprint. Achievement of the Authority's full potential has nonetheless not been

actualized due to limitations of funds and competing interests. The Authority is however

committed to harmonization of infrastructural development and environmental objectives in the

delivery ofcore business activities to maximize value.

3. Employee Welfare
The Authority recruitment process is guided by the following statutes

a) The Employment Act 2007.

This ensures that the protection ofthe fundamental rights ofemployees, and provide basic

conditions of employment of employees. It defines the contractual obligations of both
parties. lt ensures both the rights of employees are protected in terms of Terms and
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Relationships, Protection of Wages, Employment Relationship and termination and
dismissal

b) The National Cohesion and integration Act 2008
That prohibits Discrimination in employment. It requires all public establishments to seek
to represent the diversity of the people of Kenya in the employment of staff and to have
no more than one third of its stafffrom the same ethnic community.

c) The Public Service Commission Act 2017 and PSC Regulations 2020
Some of the staff working in The Authority were originally fiom the Ministry and the
provisions of the act pertaining to Appointments, Promotions, Redesigtations, Transfers,
Secondments and Deployments

d) The Authority HR Policies and Procedures Manual
The Authority is an equal opportunity employer and does not in its recruitment and
selection process, discriminate on the basis ofgender, race, religion, ethnicity or any other
form of discrimination. The constitutional requirement on mainstreaming of Gender and
Persons with Disabilities as stipulated in A(icle 232 of the Constitution of Kenya, is
observed alongside any policies issued by the National Cohesion and Integration
Commission (NCIC).

Performance Appraisal

The performance management system of the Authority is designed to measure employee
performance and ultimately the achievement of intended results for the organization. The
Authority has an incentive scheme aimed at rewarding members of staff based on the value they

are adding to the Authority in relation to their perforrnance, approved experience and professional

skills/competence. This framework therefore establishes a basis for rewarding exemplary
perlormance and administering sanctions for poor performance, motivating employees to have

positive attitude to work and to enhance productivity in the Authority.

Whilst the Authority recruits competent personnel, it cndeavors to continuously improve the

Knowledge, Skills and Attitudes of its employees to ensure that their performance meets and/or

exceeds the minimum expectations and benchmarks best practices. It recognizes the need for
training and development of all employees in order to ensure effective delivery of its broad

mandate. Training opportunities are therefore offered to all its employees in order to improve
their work performance and personal development. Funds allowing, all members of staff should
have at least five (5) days training in a year.

The Authority's has a developed career progression guideline which provides for a well-defined
career structure aimed at attracting, motivating and facilitating retention of qualified and

experienced personnel in the Kenya Rural Roads Authority (KeRRA). It establishes distinct levels

of responsibilities in the grading structure and sets standards for advancement to higher grades

on the basis of professional competence, specialization, knowledge, experience, proven ability,
diligence and drive as reflected in work performance and results.

The Authority has developed an Occupational Safety and Health Policy which guides its

operations to ensure the safety ofboth Employees in thc workplace and other stakeholders. It is
further bound by the provisions ofthe occupational safety and health Act 2007.

4. Market place practices

Responsible Competilion and Fair Practices
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The Authority utilizes tender documents from PPRA. The User Department is tasked, in liaison
with Supply Chain Department, to crafting the documents to reach a wide variety of suppliers,
contractors and stakeholders. They are made easy to read and standardized across all Regional
offices and Directorates and Departments. The documents have specific Declaration Forms under
Standard Forms to be filled by bidders during bidding. The Authority has also ensured bidders
have access to these opportunities via our website www.kerra.so.ke as well as www.tenders.so.ke
Bidders are also encouraged to engage the Authority via our customer service desk, contact
numbers and emails.
The Authority through the Constituency Roads Committees (CRC) in the various regional offices
engages the various stakeholders in prioritization of maintenance roads. The CRCs were created

under the Finance Act 2009 to enhance openness and equity in public representation and decision-
making process in procurement. The result is decentralisation in both economic and political
relationships.
Our procurement plans consolidated by the Supply Chain Department uses the most preferred
procurement method based on works, services and goods being procured. Open National tenders
is used to encourage competition among suppliers. Special groups have also been allocated
tenders.
The evaluation committee appointments are done within PPADA provisions to ensure
transparency in all procurement process. Further evaluation committees are required to sign
Confidentiality Declaration Form on conflict ofinterest.
Supplier Relationships in Supply Chain
The Authority trains the suppliers on what is expected ofthem in terms of the bidding process,

ethical behavior and confidentially of information. The bidders are debriefed on how they
performed during the tendering process and notification to all participating bidders indicating the
successful bidders. These are aimed at respecting bidders' rights and inspire confidence in our
procurement process. From time-to-time, the Authority has invited YAGPO groups to supplier
conferences to train and inform of our procurement processes and modes include use of e-
procurement. The trainings are unbundled to cluster regions hence reach by all prospective
bidders.
Infitsion of TechnoIogy in Procurement Process
The employment ofERP in our Authority has brought about simplicity and fast delivery ofour
core mandate. This is cemented by the Executive Orders requiring the Authority adhere to
constitutional tenet ofgood govemance, integrity, accountability and transparency. The Supply
Chain Department in liaison with ICT Department piloted the automation of supplier
prequalification process. The processes have been enhanced and automated the prequalification
of contractors.
Further, KeRRA website has been revamped with various menus to include link to our e-services.
This has maximized our visibility and minimized walk-ins.
Responsible Stewardship: Service Charter
The Authority takes pride in its "RESOLVED CITIZENS' SERVICE DELIVERY CHARTER".
The Charter available on our website in both Swahili and English and also prominently displayed
in all Regions and at the Head Office. The Public Relations Department has endeavored to reach
the Persons with Disability by generating Braille Charters. Members ofstaffand stakeholders are
from time to time taken through the contents of the Charter.

5. Community Engagements
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) gives an opportunity to contribute in giving back to the

society. Therefore, the Authority allocated Kshs5 million towards Corporate Social

Responsibility Programmes for FY 202212023. In reporting period, the Authority received a high

number ofrequests for support fiom various quarters, which led to the full utilization ofthe Kshs5

million provision.
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In the reporting period, the prograrnme has significantly touched the lives of vulnerable people

in the society, promoting rights to education and embracing environmental responsibility through
tree planting.

It is rernarkable that the Authority initiated in new projects in the reporting period such as the

support towards National Council for Persons with Disabilities, Tree planting in Maragoli hills
and donation of fumiture to Endarasha Primary School.

Some of the Authority most notable CSR activities carried out in lhe FY 202212023 include;
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NO. I

C Hf#[ *""'^uuro'r, (*.RRA)

KeRRA footballtealn participating in the
KECOSO Earnes as part ofthe Ministry HQ

team playing aSainst Commission Authority
Talanta rc in KerichoCounty.
{connectingdevolvedkenya

10 O2 22r09/2O?2 trom Ealih

. -T'\atf '

PROJECT NAME The Kenya Communication Sports Organization
(KECOSO)

PARTICIPANTS/SCOPE KeRRA staff, government ministries and other parastatals
participated

DETAILS KeRRA HQ in liaison with the ministry
LOCATION Kericho County
DATE Sep,2022
AMOUNT (Kshs) 691.000

NO. 2 t K..ty. Runl Ro.d! Aut Ertty (X.RnA)

KeRRA lloH tesm pa(icipatinEin a charity
event at Muthaiga Golfcourse in supportof
oorothea AS.E Rescue centre.
tsuppo.trngcommunily
l&rn(ingcheerandeoodwill

l

? .33

14:56 16lt)/2022 nanFatth 1.C53vr.85

PROJECT NAME Dorothea Rescue Centre

PARTICIPANTS/SCOPE Request to support educational needs of street children

DETAILS Request to support educational needs of street children

LOCATION Machakos County
DATE December, 2022
AMOUNT (Kshs) 304,100

-Sponsorship fee- 200,000

-Event expenses- 104,100
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NO. 3 t X.iy. Runl Ro.& Authortty (X.RRA)
@KeRRA r.e

KeRRA Director General Eng Philemon Kandie
engages with stakeholde6 and presents a
cheque dudngthe Barinllo CuhuralFair in

Kimalei.
f stakeholderengagement
gcommunilysuppon

12152. 2211212022 fion Eanh 2,22aV|ews

'1

PROJECT NAME Kimalel Goat Auction

PARTICIPANTS/SCOPE CSR Committee members represented the Authority,
public, and other agencies supporting the cause

DETAILS Request for sponsorship

LOCATION Baringo County
DATE December,2022
AMOUNT (IGhs) 705,800

-Sponsorship fee- 500,000
-Event expenses- 205,800

NO. 4
PROJECT NAME National Council for Persons with Disabilities
PARTICIPANTS/SCOPE KeRRA staff and other agencies supporting the

progftunme

DETAILS -Adopt a special School initiative
-Nyamosense Primary Special School in Migori county

was adopted
-Ablution block was built

LOCATION Nairobi County
DATE Jan,2023
AMOUNT (IGhs) 350,000

NO. 5

PROJECT NAME Nyeri Hospice Charity Toumament
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PARTICIPANTS/SCOPE KeRRA stafi Regional Office, Associated Agencies
C f#'-tfl *-'aud'o'tt, (x'rRA)

As part of our Corporate Social Responsibility
KeRRATeam today took part inthe Nyeri
Hosplce GolfTournament aimed at h€lping
lhe hospice to provide palliative care to
terminally ill pati.nts.

r.l O0 !8/O3/2023 rom FJ,tn 2JOO V,ews

DETAILS -Charity event towards supporting the Hospice
LOCATION Nyeri County
DATE March.2023
AMOUNT (IGhs) 340,600

-Sponsorship fee- 200,000

-Event expenses- 140,600

NO. 6

- f,ffi#l? *' aun. ttY (*'FRA)

Welcome to our stand at the Universlty of
Nairobi EnElne€rlng Studant Associalion (ESA
conference 2O23). as part ol theCSR
activitles the Authority is i.npacllngthe next
Seneration of engineers.
,,ESA2O23UON
f supportinSyoungent'neers

--.

^l

11 32 3O/O3/2O23lrooi E.rth 1,931v'.ws

PROJECT NAME 6th Annual lntemational
Conference (ESA)

Engineering Students

PARTICIPANTS/SCOPE KeRRA stafl govemment Agencies and Student bodies

DETAILS -Support towards the annual conference for Associates of
Engineering Student

LOCATION Nairobi County (UON)
DATE March,2023
AMOUNT (Kshs) 524,745

Sponsorship fee- 500,000

-Event expenses - 24,745
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NO. 7 t f|.iyr Rur.l Ro.dt Authortty (K.RRA)

KeRRA has adopted 12.5 acres of the MaraSoli

Forest in vihiSa Countyin a lid to supponthe
National Govemmenfs l5 billiontree planrinS

initiative. KeRRA today phnted over 3OO0

se€dlings togeth€r with th€ County
C{vemmsflt and the Community Forest
Associatlon.

l6:4r.270412023rrom€arth 5,058Vrews

,i t-\ifrl

tt' *. t

PROJECT NAME Maragoli Hills Tree Planting and Reforestation Day

PARTICIPANTS/SCOPE KeRRA and other agencies supporting thc govemment
initiative

DETAILS -Invitation for a partnership and support

-Adopt a section within the forest and plant tree seedlings

-Three (3) thousand trees seedlings were planted
LOCATION Vihiga County
DATE April, 2023

AMOUNT (Kshs) 723,200
-Sponsorship fee- 500,000
-Event expenses 223,200

NO. 8

PROJECT NAME AIC Githumu Mission Hospital
PARTICIPANTS/SCOPE KeRRA staff
DETAILS -Request for financial assistance to attend the patients'

needs

-Donations included Tbeds with mattresses for male wing
LOCATION Muranga County
DATE Jure 2021
AMOUNT (Kshs) 496,000
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NO. 9

PROJECT NAME St. Georgc Orthodox Church Kibera Parish
PARTICIPANTS/SCOPE KeRRA staff
DETAILS -Request for financial assistancc to attend ncedy pupils

-Donations includes 170 chairs and tables
LOCATION Nairobi County
DATE June.2023
AMOUNT (Kshs) 204,000

NO. l0 e Xmya Rural Roadr Author..

t X.iy. nur.l Ro.ds AuttE... hr ,ur r

Earlier today x.eRA sraf,lrom HQ &Nanobr
PeSron panrcipatedrn the AnnualMalar Hean
He.rr Ru. at U r nzi Sporis C@pier alo.8
Lana .ta Road Th. .un aims lo rais? tunds lo
suppo.l chrldren suft..n8lrcm h€an
c6p canons wrrh pnoflty SNen to those lrom

PROJECT NAME Mater Heart Run
PARTICIPANTS/SCOPE KcRRA staff, the Public and othcr agencies supporting the

cause
DETAILS Catholic Mission in support of Children with heart defects

LOCATION Nairobi County
DATE June.2023
AMOUNT (Kshs) 490,000

Sponsorship fee- 250,000

Evcnt expenses-240.000
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The directors submit their report together with the audited financial statements for the year ended

30th June 2023, in accordance with the provisions of section of the 38 of Kenya Roads Act 2007

which disclose the state of affairs of the Authority.

Principal sctivities

The principal activity of the Authority is the managernent, development, rehabilitation and

maintenance of the Rural Road Network in Kenya classified as C and others.

Results

The results for the Authority for the year ended 30 June 2023 are set out on page l

Directors

The directors who held office during the year and to the date of this report are set out on page ix-xv.

Auditors

The Auditor General is responsible for the statutory audit of the Authority's books of account in

accordance with the provisions of Article 229 of the Constitution of Kenya, Kenya Roads Acl2007

and the Public Audit Act, 2015

By order of the Board

.D"ta$l:d:::Name : Eng. Philemon Kandie MBS Signature.....

Secretary to the Board
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Section 8l of the Public Finance Management Act, 2012 and seclion 14 of the State Corporations

Act, require the Directors to prepare financial statements in respect of that Authority, which give a

true an4 fAir vieuFofthe state ofaffairs ofthe Authority at the end ofthe fini-nciai year/period and the

operating results of the Authority for that yearlperiod. The Directors are also required to ensure that

the Authority keeps proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy the financial

position of the Authority. The Directors are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the

Authority.

The Directors are responsible for the preparation and presenlation of the Authority's financial

statements, which give a true and fair view ofthe state of affairs ofthe Authority for and as at the end

ofthe financial year (period) ended on June 30,2023. This responsibility includes:

(D Maintaining adequate financial management arrangements and ensuring that these continue
to be effective throughout the reporting period.

(ii) . Maintaining proper accounting records, which disclose v.'ith reasonable accuracy at any time
the financial position of the Authority.

(iii) Designing, implementing and maintaining intemal controls relevant to the preparation and

fair presentation of the financial statements, and ensuring that they are free from material
misstatements, whether due to error or fraud.

(iv) Safeguarding the assets ofthe Authority.
(u) Selecting and appllng appropriate accounting policies.
(vi) Making accounling estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

The Directors accept responsibility for the Authority's financial statements, which have been prepared

using appropriate accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates,

in conformity with Intemational Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS), and in the manner

required by the PFM Act, 2012 and the State Corporations Act. The Directors are of the opinion that

the Authority's financial statements give a true and fair view ofthe state of Authority's transaclions

during the financial year ended lune 30,2023, and ofthe Authority's financial position as at that date.

The Directors furlher confirm the completeness ofthe accounting records maintailed for the Authority,
which have been relied upon in the preparation of the Authority's financial slatements as well as the

adequacy ofthe systems of intemal financial control.

Nothing has come to the attention of the Directors to indicate that the Authority will not remain as a

going concern for at least the next lwelve months from the date ofthis statement.

Approval of the financial statements

The Authority's financial statements were approved by the Board on

signed on its behalfby:
Cs,hr," 2023 and

Signature -S+41
Name: Eng. Philemon K. Kandie MBS
Director Gencral

ta
,fDL-x

Signature ........:Y....... 2
Name: Prof.(Eng) dyuko Mbeche EBS
Chairperson of the Board
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f rn"ir' i.to6lo"gi."iy-..go.t 
"website: www.oagkenya.go.ke

REPUBLIC OF KENYA

OFFICE OF THE AUOITON-GENERAL

E n h anc i ng A c co u n a bi I i t1'

HEADqUARTERS
Anniversary Towers

Monrovia Street
P.O. Box 30o84-ooloo

NAIROBI

REPORT OF THE AUDITORGENERAL ON KENYA RURAL ROADS AUTHORITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE,2023

PREAMBLE

I draw your attention to the contents of my report which is in three parts:

A. Report on the Financial Statements that considers whether the financial statements
are fairly presented in aerordance with the applicable financial reporting framework,
accounting standards and the relevant laws and regulations that have a direct effect
on the financial statements.

B. Report on Lawfulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources which consides
compliance with applicable laws, regulations, policies, gazette notices, circulars,
guidelines and manuals and whether public resources are applied in a prudent,
efficient, economic, transparent and accountable manner to ensure that the
Government achieves value for money and that such funds are applied for the
intended purpose.

C. Report on Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance
which considers how the entity has instituted checks and balances to guide internal
operations. This responds to the effectiveness of the governance structure, the risk
management environment and the internal controls, developed and implemented by
those charged with governance for orderly, efficient and effective operations of the
entity.

An unmodified opinion does not necessarily mean that an entity has complied with all
relevant laws and regulations and that its internal controls, risk management and
governance systems are properly designed and were working effectively in the financial
year under review.

The three parts of the report are aimed at addressing the statutory roles and
responsibilities of the Auditor-General as provided by Article 229 of the Constitution, the
Public Finance Management Act, 2012 and the Public Audit Act, 201 5. The three parts of
the report, when read together constitute the report of the Auditor-General.

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Qualified Opinion

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of Kenya Rural Roads Authority
set out on pages I lo 47, which comprise of the statement of financial position as at
30 June,'2023, and the statement of financial performance, statement of changes in net
assets, statement of cash flows and statement of comparison of budget and actual
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amounts for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information in accordance with the provisions of Article 229 of the
Constitution of Kenya and Section 35 of the PublicAuditAct,20l5. lhave obtained all
the information and explanations which, to the best of my knowledge and belief, were
necessary for the purpose of the audit.

ln my opinion, except for the effects of the mafter described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion section of my report, the financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Kenya Rural Roads Authority as at 30 June,2023,
and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance
with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual Basis) and comply with
the Public Finance Management Acl, 2012 and the Kenya Roads Act, 2007.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

Lack of Valuation for Fully Depreciated Asgets

The statement of financial position reflects property, plant and equipment balance of
Kshs.225,073,000 as disclosed in Note 22 to the financial statements. Review of the fixed
assets schedule provided for audit revealed that fixed assets with a total value of
Kshs.989,846,468 which were fully depreciated had been included in the Authority's
assets register and were still in use. However, the assets had not been revalued despite
their use by the Authority for day to day operations. Further, Management did not disclose
the registration details of the fully depreciated assets with a historical cost value of
Kshs.S12,443,162 in the fixed assets register.

ln the circumstances, the fair value of the property, plant and equipment balance of
Kshs.225,073,000 could not confirmed.

The audit was conducted in accordance with lnternational Standards of Supreme Audit
lnstitutions (lSSAls). I am independent of the Kenya Rural Roads Authority Management
in accordance with ISSAI 130 on the Code of Ethics. lhave fulfilled other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the ISSAI and in accordance with other ethical
requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements in Kenya. I believe
that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my qualified opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, are of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements. There were no key audit matters to
report in the year under review.

Other Matter

Unresolved Prior Year Audit lssues

ln the audit report of the previous year, several issues were raised in the Report on
Financial Statements, Reports on Lawfulness and Effectiveness in the use of Public

a
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Resources and Report on Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk. Management and
C,overnance. However, the Management has not resolved some of tte issues.

REPORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC
RESOURCES

Conclusion

As required by Article 229(6) of the Constitution, based on the audit procedures
performed, except for the matters described in the Basis for Conclusion on Lawfulness
and Effectiveness in use of Public Resources section of my report, I confirm that, nothing
else has come to my attention to cause me to believe that public resources have not been
applied lawfully and in an effective way.

Basis for Conclusion

1. Failure to Recover Staff Advances and lmprest

The statement of financial position reflects receivables from non-exchange transactions
balance of Kshs.854,243,847. The balance comprised of advances to staff amounting to
Kshs.25,806,179, deposits and prepayments amounting to Kshs.85,537,347 and other
receivables (accrued income) totalling Kshs.742,900,321 . The advances to staff amount
of Kshs.25,806,'179 consisted of two (2) supporting ledgers of staff imprest balance of
Kshs.24,995,318 and staff advances of Kshs.810,861 which have been outstanding since
2021 financial year. Review of records revealed that as at 30 June, 2O23 only three (3)
staff had recoveries made on their monthly salaries. Further, the supporting schedule
provided reflects imprest balance of Kshs.l 1,128,784 and advances balance of
Kshs.875,975 all totalling Kshs.12,004,756 were outstanding for more that ninety (90)
days.

This is contrary to Regulation 93(5) of the Public Finance Management (National
Government) Regulations, 2015 which states that a holder of a temporary imprest shall
account or surrender the imprest within seven (7) working days after returning to duty
station. Further, Section C .6 (1) and (5) of the Human Resource Policies and Procedures
Manual for the Public Service May, 20'16 states that the recovery period for salary
advance will be limited to a period of not more than twelve (12) months; and in respect of
an officer who is due to leave the service before twelve (12) months, the advance must
be fully recovered in equal instalments within the remaining period of the officer's service
in the Government.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

2. Non-Compliance with a Third Rule of Basic Pay

Review of the Authority's monthly payrolls provided for audit revealed that some staff had
overcommitted their salaries beyond the two-thirds of basic salary limit. lt was observed
that the officers' net pay for the various months was less than a third of their basic pay.
This is contrary to Section 19(3)1 of the Employment Act, 2007 which states that
"deduction may be made by an employer from the wages of his employee at any one time
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shall not exceed two thirds of such wages or such additional or other amount as may be
prescribed by the Minister either generally or in relation to a specified employer or
employee or class of employers or employees or any trade or industry".

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

3. Project Status on Road Works Expenditure

The Authority has been undertaking a number of low volume seal roads across the urban
centres in the country. However, review of the low volume seal roads records and
information provided revealed the following anomalies;

(i) Review of the records provided for audit revealed that there were fourteen (14)
contracts for roads under newly awarded contracts at a contract cost of
Kshs.15,602,935,891 with the contract start dates of between November, 2020
and October, 2022. A total of Kshs.2,870,187,602 certified works had been
completed as at December,2O23, out of which Kshs.1,577,565,193 had been paid
and Kshs.1,292,622,4O9 remained unpaid. Out of the fourteen (14) contracts, six
(6) contracts did not have any work started and had total contract cost of
Kshs.6,200,235,160. Management has not provided any explanation for this
unsatisfactory situation.

(ii) Further, eight (8) road contracts had been classified as projects terminated and
retendered as at Dec€mber, 2023. The contracts had a contract cost sum of
Kshs.18,375,619,633. The works certified as at December,2023 totalled
Kshs.7,325,587,692 out of which Kshs.6,901,656,097 had been paid leaving a
pending amount payable of Kshs.423,931,595. Management has not provided any
explanation for this unsatisfactory situation.

(iii) ln addition, nineteen (19) contracts with a total contract sum of
Kshs.29,042,065,250 with contract dates beginning between March, 2021 and
March,2022 and which were classified as contracts under contract mobilizing. The
certified payments totalled Kshs.4,449,802,340 and payments made as at
December, 2023 amounted to Kshs.2,163,865,716 thus leaving an amount of
Kshs.2,285,936,624 as unpaid.

(iv) Similarly, a total of thirty-six (36) contracts were under performance based routine
maintenance period. All of these projects are at 1O0Vo completion and at a total
contract sum of Kshs.76,055,037 ,424. lt was observed that certified payments
totalled Kshs.68,51 1,051,112 with Kshs.S8,526,145,769 having been paid out as
at December, 2023. Therefore, a total amount of Kshs.9,984,905,343 remained
unpaid even though the contracts are at 100% completion. Management has not
provided any explanation for this unsatisfactory situation.

(v) A total of one hundred and five (105) contracts were classified as ongoing projects
with a contract sum of Kshs.193,456,M8,951. Out of this, a total number of
thirty-two (32) projects with a total contract sum of Kshs.69,226,156,071 or 36%
had slow progress due to delayed payments. Amounts of Kshs.85,837,446,006
and Kshs.36,516,983,360 had been certified for payments for all the ongoing
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projects and those with slow progress respectively. Pending bills were at
Kshs.26,946,615,960 and Kshs.11,705,241,394 for all ongoing contracts and
those with slow progress respectively all totalling Kshs.38,651,857,354. Out of the
contracts classified as slow due to delayed payments, there were five (5) contracts
had been completed but had a total amount of Kshs.1,697,955,441 pending for
payment. Management has not provided any explanation for this unsatisfactory
situation.

ln the circumstances, the effectiveness in the use of public resources on low volume seal
roads could not be confirmed.

4. lmplementation of Low Volume Seal Road Projects by the Authority

An audit inspection exercise carried out in February, 2024 on nineteen (19) low volume
seal roads with a total contract sum of Kshs.31 ,426,015,932 revealed that for most of the
projects, the contractors had abandoned the site due to delayed payments while the
contractors who were on site were on a slow progress also due to delayed payments.
Management has not provided any explanation for this unsatisfactory situation.

ln the circumstances, the value for money for the expenditure on low volume seal roads
of Kshs.31,426,015,932 could not be confirmed.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 4000. The standard requires that I

comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance
about whether the activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the
financial statements are in compliance, in all material respects, with the authorities that
govern them. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for my conclusion.

REPORT ON EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK MANAGEMENT
AND GOVERNANCE

Conclusion

As required by Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015, based on the audit
procedures performed, except for the matters described in the Basis for Conclusion on
Effectiveness in use of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance section of
my report, I confirm that, nothing else has come to my attention to cause me to believe
that internal controls, risk management and overall governance were not effective.

Basis for Conclusion

1. Long Outstanding Receivables from Exchange Transactions

The statement of financial position reflects receivables from exchange transactions
balance of Kshs.2O,173,825,000 which as disclosed in Note 20 to the financial statements
relates to contractors' advances. Further, the ageing analysis provided for audit reflects
receivables amounting to Kshs.19,995,248,000 which had been due for more than one
year. Management has not provided any explanatlon for the receivables held by various
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contractors for long periods of time yet the Authority is also having pending accounts
payable (pending bills) due to vdrious contractors for road works already done.

ln the absence of proper internal controls, the contractors' advances will continue to grow
and may reach unsustainable levels with contractors holding huge substantial advances
and with contracts stalled or slow in progress of implementation.

2. Long Outstanding Payables from Exchange Transactions (Pending Bills)

The statement of financial position reflects payables from exchange transactions balance
of Kshs.62,806,803,000 as disclosed in Note 25 to the financial statements which
comprised of current and non-current payables amounts of Kshs.55,066,422,000 and
Kshs.7,740,381,000 respectively. Further, the total payables balance has increased from
Kshs.48,908,092,000 in the previous year to Kshs.62,806,803,000 representing an
increase of Kshs.13,898,71 1,000 or 28.4o/o. The Authority has not provided an
explanation on the measures put in place to facilitate payments of the outstanding
certificates which have been raised for works done and the accrued interest if any, arising
from delayed payments.

ln the circumstances, the Authority faces the risk of avoidable costs of possible litigation
and interest and penalties on delayed payments.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 2315 and ISSAI 2330. The standards
require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether effective
processes and systems of internal control, risk management and overall governance were
operating effectively, in all material respects. I believe that the audit evidence I have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

Responsibilities of Management and the Board of Directors

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual
Basis) and for maintaining effective internal controls as Management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and for its assessment of the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and governance.

ln preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
Authority's ability to continue to sustain its services, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to sustainability of services and using the applicable basis of accounting unless
Management is aware of the intention to terminate the Authority or to cease operations.

Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Public Audit Act,
2015.

ln addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements described above, Management is also responsible for ensuring that the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected iri the financial statements are
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in compliance with the authorities which govern them, and that public resources are
applied in an effective way.

The Board of Directors
process, reviewing the
relevant legislative and
systems are in place to
and risk management,
environment.

is responsible for overseeing the Authority's financial reporting
effectiveness of how Management monitors compliance with
regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective processes and
address key roles and responsibilities in relation to governance
and ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of the control

Auditor-General's Responsibilities for the Audit

The audit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion in accordance with the provisions
of Section 48 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit the audit report in compliance with
Article 229(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls will always detect
a material misstatement and weakness when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

ln addition to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance audit is planned and
performed to express a conclusion about whether, in all material respects, the activities,
financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in
compliance with the authorities that govern them and that public resources are applied in
an effective way, in accordance with the provisions of Article 229(6) of the Constitution
and submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution.

Further, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and audit of
compliance, I consider internal controls in order to give an assurance on the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and overall governance processes and systems in
accordance with the provisions of Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 201 5 and submit
the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution. My consideration of
the internal control would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal controls that
might be material weaknesses under the lSSAls. A material weakness is a condition in
which the design or operation of one or more of the internal controls components does
not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in
amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may
occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal controls may not prevent or detect
misstatements and instances of non-compliance. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies and procedures may deteriorate.
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As part of an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls, I exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism througl,out the audit. I also:

. ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by Management.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of Management's use of the applicable basis of
accounting and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material un@rtainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Authority's
ability to continue to sustain its services. lf I conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
I am required to draw attention in the auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my audit
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Authority to cease to
continue to sustain its services.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and
business activities of the Authority to express an opinion on the financial statements.

o Perform such other procedures as lconsider necessary in the circumstances.

I communicate with Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that are identified during the audit.

I also provide Management with a statement that I have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence and
where applicable, related safeguards.

FCPA cBs
AUDITOR-GENERAL

Nairobi

15May,2024
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JTJNE 2023

REVENUE
Revenue fmm Non Exchange Transactions
Road Maintenance trly Fund

Govemrnent Grants

Developnrcnt partners' Grants

Total Revenue from Non Exchange Transactions

Revenue fmm Exchange Transactions
Finance Ircome

Otlcr irrone
Rental Revenre

Total Revenue fmm Exchange Transactions

Total Revenue

EXPENDITURE
Road Works costs

Directors' Costs

Enpkrynrnt Costs

Repairs and rna intenarr e

Other Operating Costs

Deprec iatkrn and arrnotization experse

t2

l3
t4
l5
l6
t7

37 ,991,235
20,549

2,969,366

135,179
1)a )) I

87,465

40,197,72s

32,085

2,821,451
169, t 30

760,8t2
t20,152

,n\
),J

Director -

2022-2023

Jur23
Note Shs'000

26,409,596

15,060,064

454,430

2021-2022

Jrn-22
Shsr000

27,725,667

17,799,054

s20,945

6

7

8

41,924,090 46,045,666

I
l0
ll

1,225,481

5l,3 l l
1,075

904, t 83 I ,277 ,866

42,828,273 47,323,532

899,756

3,302

1,125

Total Expenditure 41,933,01 5 44,515,t56

Taxation l9 762,337 413,801

Ope rating Surplus for the year 132,92t 2,808,376

The significant accounting policies on pages and the notes on pages 7 to 5l form an integral part of
these fi nancial statements.

*./*
Deputy Director Finance & Accounts Director General
CPA Matilda Wakere Ita Eng. Philemon Kandie MBS
ICPAK M. No: 5469 \ 
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Note

2022-2023

Jur23
Shs'000

2021-2022

Jurr22
Shs'000

ASSEIS
Currcnt Assets
Cash ard cash equ alents
Receivabbs fiom exchange transactk ns

Receivables from rnn exchange transactiorrs

Inventories

Non-Curf€ nt Assets
Property Plant ard Equipment
Road Infrastructue Assets
Capital Work In Progress

Total Assests

LIABII.,ITIES
Current liabilities
Payables tom exchange trarsac tions
Payables from Non- Exchange trarsaclk)ns
Enployree benefit obligation

Non Curre nt Liabilities
Payables from exchange transactions

Total Liabilities

Net Assets

REPRESEI{TED BY:
GOK Dewbpnrnt Ftrd
Staff Mortgage Furd
Accurrulated(Defcil)/ Surphs

ICP

69,332,612 66,r2t,333

l8
20
20
2t

22
23
24

z5
25
26

48,301,429
20,173,825

854,244
3,114

44,527,506
19,921,388
I,665,795

6,644

225,O73
139,96t,577
197,694,836

293,635
r24,175,119
179,892,966

337,881,486 304.361,72t

407,214,098 370,483,054

55,066,422 40,922,940

190,741 I 38,197
55,257,163 41,061,138

25 7,740,381 7,985,152
7,740,38t 7,985,152

62,997,544 49,046,290

344,216,354 321,436,765

SCNA
SCNA
SCNA

349,866,916
546,960

(6,r97,321)

327 ,225,066
541,941

(6,330,242)

Total Net Assets and Liabilities 344,2t6,554 321,436,765

The significant accounting policies on pages and the notes on pages 7 to 5l form an integral part of
these financial statements The financial statements on pages I to 86 were approved for issue by the

board ofdirectors on and were signed on their behalfby:

Deputy irector Finance & Accounts Director General
CPA Matilda Wakere Ita Eng. Philemon Kandie MBS

#/,. Ch,(
;i;;;i;, 2

D",..2t{f.r}lDate..
No: 5469
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Kttr.tu Rnrul Iloud\ -luthoritl
lnnuul Rtport tnl I-'itotr(iul Stit(rntnt\

l:ttr the yeor enlul -ltlh June )01-l

s l.\ l t._\il._\ I ol; ('il \\(;t_s t\ \t._ l"\sst. t-s
For the Year Ended 30 June 2023

Note
Accurnrlated

Surplus GOK Developrent
Flmd

Shs'000

308,064,979

19,160,087

Staff Mortgage
Fund

Shs'000

537,022

4,919

Totel

Shs'000

299,463,383

t 9,165,006

2,808,376

Shs'000
(9,138,6 r 8)

2,808,376

At lst July 2021

Furds received during tlrc year

Surphs ftlr tlr Perbd

At 30th June 2022

At lst JuIy 2022

Furds received during the year

Surphs fir the Period

(6,330,242) 327,225,066 541,941 321,436,765

(6,330,242) 32'7,225,066

22,&1,850
541,941

5,019

321,436,765

22,646,869

132,921132,921

At 30th June 2023 (6,197,321) 349,866,916 546,960 344,216,555

The significant accounting policies on pages and the notes on pages 7 to 5l form an integral part ofthese financial statements.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

Cash flou,r fmm operating activities
Receipts
Trarsfers from other govemrrrns entitbs
RentalrevenLre from frc hies and equipmnt
Finance irrconB
Other inconr
Total receipts

PayIIEnts
Use ofgoods and services
Enplope costs
Board Expenses
Repairs and nainterunce
Contracted servbes
Taxes

Total paynrcnts

Net cash flows fronftLsed in) opcrating actit'ities

Cash flows fmm investing activities
Purchase ofPPE ard Intangfule assels
Proceeds fmm sale of PPE

Investnrnt in Road Intustnrchre

Sah of inrrestnBnts

Net cash flou,s fmm(used in) investing activities

Cash llorm fmm linancing activities
Proceeds tom borrowings

Repaynrnt ofbonowings

Proceeds from Mortgge Fmd
Net cash florx fmm financing Activities

65,38 1,342
I,125

899,'156
3,302

6't,t51 ,896
1,075

t,225,48t
5t,3il

2022-2023
Jur23
Shs'000

202t-2022
Jult22
Shs'000

Re-Stated
Note

22

24

SCNA

fu-l^n
-.fsr.=

66,285,525 68,435,763

(747,006)
(2,8e9,358)

(20,s4e)
( 135, r 79)

(24,344,961\
(762,337)

(28,909,391)

(760,812)
(2,906,s39)

(32,08s)
(169,r30)

(33,176,447)
(413,80 r )

(38,0s8,814)

37,376,t34 30,376,949

( 18,902)

(33,588,328)

(s7,23s)

(30,246,592)

5,019 4,9t9
5,019 4,9t9

Net increase(decrcase) in cash &

Cash equivalents

Cash and cash equ alents at tlre Start ofYear
Cash and cash equivalents at tlre End oftlre Period l8

3,',|73,922 78.041

44,527,506 44,449,465

48,30r,429 44,527,506

Cash flow for previous year has been re-stated to comply with the requirement ofdirect method of

presentation.

The significant accounting policies on pages and the notes on pages 7 to 5l form an integral

part ofthese financial statements

(33,607,230) (30,303,827)

Director
tew

Deputy Director Finance & Accounts Director General
CPA Matilda Wakere lta Eng. Philemon Kandie MBS
ICPAKM. No: 5469 h;Tffih\lHl:: D.,"{::hP}
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Revenw

Road Maintaunce Levy Frud

Crowrmrrnt Gm s

Delebpmnt partrn' Grans

Frwrce Irrcom

Other inconE

RenalRelenw

Totd Revenue

UTE{Dtn'RE
Road Wo*s Cosls- Maiena.rrce

Drechn' Costs

F.rpbynrnt Costs

Repan and nnrlename

0tlrr 0peratrry Costs

Deprecatbn ard arnntizatbn expeme

Taxatbn

Exclreqwr Fud-Maintairalre

Tramfer to GOK Fr-nd

Originel Budget

2022-2023

Nole Sk'000

6 28,774,349

1 44,092,849

8 2,076,000

9 I,159,867

l0 10,000

I 2,000

Adjustments Frnal Br$et
2022-2023

Shs'000

26.409,596

38,609,8i1

1,981,000

880,866

10,000

2,000

Actul on

c0[paris on

Basis

2022-2023

sh'000

26,409,596

37,701,914

454,430

899,756

3,302

1,125

Perforname

Difrennce

2022-2023

Sb!'000

(0)

907.957

1,526,570

(18,890)

6,699

875

% Varirme

2022-2023

sh'000

0o/o

11Yo

6To/o

sh'000

12J&,7s3\
(5,482.917\

(95,000)

(27e,001)

Re ma*s/ Variame Erplanation

Pronpt Releases by KRB

Dehyed Eahequer Releases

hhyed pmject lnplemntarion

Riduccd average Cash bahnces

Supprcsed level of economic activities

Ministry of Housrng Challenges

76,il5,064 (8,221,731) 67,89r,334 6s,470,t24 2,423,210

t2

l3

l4

l5

l6

11

27,t84.952

30,000

2,858,314

103,41l

1,540,018

305,500

44,092,849

074,001)

110,000

12,000

(8,009,730)

22,641,850

26,810,952

30,000

2,988,314

135,431

740,018

30s,500

800,000

36,083,1r9

24.849,263

20,549

2.969.366

l35,li9

729,221

E7,465

762,331

t3,141,972

22,U1,850

(r,961,689)

(9,451)

(18,948)

(252\

(10,i97)

(218,015)

(37,663)

22,941,t47

-32%

-t%

\Yo

-t%

-7lo/o

-5%

Transition of CRC comitees

&hyed irpLnEntation of PCTaEets

Variance *ithin mnge

Variance uithi, mngc

Variance wilhir nngc

Dehyed acquisition of assets

Vanance within range

Transfer to Fund

TEns fer form EJaheq uer ccebls

76,115,065 (8,221,X1) 67,893,334 65,337,203 20,684Jt2
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1. RMLF Revenue
-Promp Release by KRB. All funds were released by the end of 3d Quarter

2. Covernments Grants Shortfall-
-This is due to delayed Exchequer ofRelease ofCounterpart and regular Funding by
National Treasury.
-The Authority Received 49% of its Exchequer releases in June 2023.

3. Finance Income.
-Targets Not achieved due to reduction in average cash balance during the period.

4. Other Income.
-Sale ofTenders are no longer being charged.

5. Expenditure
-Road works Maintenance-Transition of the CRC Committees.
- Implernentation of Executive order on 50 Million Procurernent and Expenditure

6. Original Budget differs from Final Budget due to GOK Exchequer supplementary
budget approved during the period and reallocation ofoverheads.

7. Directors cost not fully absorbed due to austerity measues.
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1. General Information

Kenya Rural Roads Authority (KeRRA) is a State Corporation established under the Kenya
Roads Act 2007.The Authority is headed by a Board of Directors led by a chairman with the
Director General being the Chief Executive of the Authority.

The Kenya Roads Act 2007 provides for the mandate ofthe Authority to manage, develop,
rehabilitate and maintain the rural road network within the Republic of Kenya. However, the
Constitution of Kenya 2010 assigns t}re responsibility of managing National Trunk Roads to
National Govemment and County Roads to County Govemments under the Fourth Schedule
Part l8(b). In line with this provision, the road network in Kenya was reclassified vide Kenya
Gazette Notice of 22"d Jantary 2016 by the State Department of Infrastructure. National
trunk roads in Class C totaling 19,504 Km were vested to the Authority by the Cabinet
Secretary. A further reclassification by the Cabinet Secretary on Sth May 2020 revised the
Authority network tol8,662Km of national trunk road network in Class C.

2. Statement of compliance and Basis of Preparation
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for the
measurement at re-valued amounts of certain items of property, plant and equipment,
marketable securities and financial instruments at fair value, impaired assets at their
estimated recoverable amounts and actuarially determined liabilities at their present value.
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Intemational Public Sector
Accounting Standards (IPSAS) allows the use of estimates and assumptions. It also requires
management to exercise judgement in the process of appllng Kenya Rural Roads Authority
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree ofjudgement or complexity, or
where assumptions and estimates are sigrificant to the financial statements, are disclosed in
Note 4

The financial statements have been prepared and presented in Kenya Shillings, which is the
functional and reporting currency ofKenya Rural Roads Authority .The financial statements
have been prepared in accordance with and comply with Intemational Public Sector
Accounting Standards (IPSAS) issued by Intemational Public Sector Accounting Standards
Board (IPSASB), the Public Financial Management Act,2012, Public Audit Act, 2015 and
Kenya Roads Act 200'7 .

3. Adoption of new and revised Standards
i. New and amended standards and interpretations in issue effective in the year ended 30

June 2023.

Applicable: I't January 2023:

The objective of IPSAS 4l is to establish principles for the

financial repo(ing of financial assets and liabilities that will

present relevant and useful information to users of financial

statements for their assessment of the amounts, timing and

uncertainty of an Entity's future cash flows.

IPSAS 4l: Financial

Instruments

7
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The Authority has not been significantly impacted by the standard

IPSAS 4l provides users of financial statements with more useful

inlormation than IPSAS 29, by:

. Applying a single classification and measurement model for

financial assets that considers the characteristics of the asset's

cash flows and the objective for which the asset is held;

. Appllng a single forward-looking expected credit loss model

that is applicable to all financial instruments subject to

impairment testing; and

. Appllng an improved hedge accounting model that broadens

the hedging arrangements in scope ofthe guidance. The model

develops a strong link between an Entity's risk management

strategies and the accounting treatment for instruments held as

part ofthe risk management strategy.

The Authority has not been significantly impacted by the standard

IPSAS 42r Social

Benefits

Applicable: l'r January 2023

The objective ofthis Standard is to improve the relevance, faithful

representativeness and comparability of the information that a

reporting Entity provides in its financial statements about social

benefits. The information provided should help users of the

financial statements and general-purpose financial reports assess:

(a) The nature ofsuch social benefits provided by the Entity.

(b) The key features of the operation of those social benefit

schemes; and

(c) The impact of such social benefits provided on the Entity's

financial performance, financial position and cash flows.

The Authority has not been significantly impacted by the standard

Amendments to Other

IPSAS resulting fiom

IPSAS 4l , Financial

Instruments

Applicable: lst January 2023:

a) Amendments to IPSAS 5, to update the guidance related to the

components of borrowing costs which were inadvertently

omitted when IPSAS 4l was issued.

8
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b) Amendments to IPSAS 30, regarding illustrative examples on

hedging and credit risk which were inadvertently omitted when

IPSAS 41 was issued.

c) Amendments to IPSAS 30, to update the guidance for

accounting for financial guaranteed contracts which were

inadvertently omitted when IPSAS 41 was issued.

d) Amendments to IPSAS 33, to update the guidance on

classiffing financial instruments on initial adoption of accrual

basis IPSAS which were inadvertently omitted when IPSAS 41

was issued.

The Authority has not been sigrificantly impacted by the

standard

Other improvements

to IPSAS

Applicable Id January 2023

o IPSAS 22 Disclosure of Financial Information about the

General Government Sector, Amendments to refer to the latest

Systern of National Accounts (SNA 2008).

c IPSAS 39: Employee Benefits. Now deletes the term composite

social security benefits as it is no longer defined in IPSAS.

. IPSAS 29: Financial instruments: Recognition and

Measurement. Standard no longer included in the 2023

IPSAS handbook as it is now superseded by IPSAS 41 which

is applicable from 1't January 2023.

The Authority has not been sigrrificantly impacted by the standard

I
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

ii. New and arnended standards and interpretations in issue but nol yet elfective in the

year ended j0 June 2023.

i ii. Early adoption of standards

The entity did not early - adopt any new or amended standards in year 2023.

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements

are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,

unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of Preparation

The financial statcments have been prepared under the historical cost convention, unless

otherwise stated. The Financial Statements are presented in Kenya Shillings which is the

IPSAS 43 Applicable ln January 2025

The standard sets out the principles for the recognition,

measurement, presentation, and disclosure of leases. The objective

is to ensure that lessees and lessors provide relevant information in

a manner that faithfully represents those transactions. This

information gives a basis for users offinancial statements to assess

the effect that leases have on the financial position, financial

performance and cashflows of an Entity.

The new standard requires entities to recognise, measure and

present information on right ofuse assets and lease liabilities.

IPSAS 44: Non-

Current Assets Held

tbr Sale and

Discontinued

Operations

Applicable I"t January 2025

The Standard rcquires,

Assets that meet the criteria to be classified as held for sale to be

measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs

to sell and the depreciation ofsuch assets to cease and:

Assets that meet the criteria to be olassified as held for sale to be

prescnted separately in the statement of financial position and the

results ofdiscontinued operations to be presented separately in the

statement of fi nancial performance.

The Authority does expect a significantly impacted by the standard.

10



' h,nro Rurtl Rr,,tJ: lurh,'ritt
lunrttl lltp,trr tnl l inn (itl .\ttrt(tn, nt\
Lq rht ri,tt ,-tt.l,-J io ll , :u: i

functional and reporting currency of the Authority and all values are rounded to the nearest

thousand (Ksh 000).

(b) Presentation of Financial Statements

The financial statements comprise of statement of financial performance, statement of
financial position, statement of changes in net assets/reserves, the statement of cash flows
and statement of comparison of budget and actual amount and the notes to the financial

statements.

The Authority classifies its expenditure by the nature of expense methodology.

The disclosure on risks are presented in the financial risk management objectives and

policies contained in note 5.

(c) Budget Information
The original budget for FY 2022-2023 was approved by the National Assernbly in June

2022. Subsequent revisions or additional appropriations were made to the approved budget

in accordance with specific approvals from the appropriate authorities.

The Authority's budget is prepared on a different basis to the actual income and expenditure

disclosed in the financial statements. The financial statements are prepared on accrual basis

using a classification based on the nature of expenses in the statement of financial
performance, whereas the budget is prepared on a cash basis. The amounts in the financial

statements were recast from the accrual basis to the cash basis and reclassified by
presentation to be on the same basis as the approved budget. A comparison ofbudget and

actual amounts, prepared on a comparable basis to the approved budget, is then presented in
the statement of comparison ofbudget and actual amounts.

In addition to the Basis difference, adjustments to amounts in the financial statements are

also made for differences in the formats and classification schemes adopted for the

presentation of the financial statements and the approved budget.

(d) Taxation
The Authority is an appointed tax agent for Kenya Revenue Authority with the mandate to

withhold tax and remit to Kenya Revenue Authority. The withheld taxes are recognized as

current liabilities until paid to the relevant Authority.

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current period are measured at the amount

expected to be recovered fiom or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws

used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the

reporting date in the area where the Entity operates and generates taxable income.

Cunent income tax relating to items recognized directly in net assets is recognized in net

assets and not in the statement offinancial performance. Management periodically evaluates

positions taken in the tax retums with respect to situations in which applicable tax

regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

11
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(e) Translation of foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign cunencies are initially accounted for at the ruling rate of exchange

on the date of the transaction. Trade creditors or debtors denominated in foreign currency

are reported at the statement of financial position reporting date by applying the exchange

rate on that date. Exchange differences arising {iom the settlement of creditors, or from the

reporting of creditors at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded

during the period, are recogrized as income or expenses in the period in which they arise.

(f) Revenuerecognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of consideration received or receivable in the ordinary
course of business. In accordance with the Kenya Roads Act 2007, revenue comprises all
proceeds from the Kenya Roads Board Fund, Grants, Loans and donations from Central

Govemment and Development partners, and such moneys, sums or assets that may accrue

to the Authority. The revenue is for specified purposes including maintenance, rehabilitation
and development of the rural road network in Kenya.

The Authority recognizes revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured

and it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Authority.

i) Road Maintenance Lety Fund
Receipts fiom the Road Maintenance Levy Fund comprise of 32oh of collections from the

Road Maintenance Levy Fund administered by the Kenya Roads Board in accordance with
the Kenya Roads Board act 1999.

Proceeds from the Road Maintenance Levy Fund are generally recognized in the Statement

ofFinancial Performance on accrual basis.

ii) Agricultural Cess
The Agricultural Cess comprises of80% ofall monies collected as Cess in respect oftea and

coffee as per Agricultural Act. The fund is administered by Kenya Roads Board. Proceeds

from agricultural Cess are recognized in the Statement of Financial Performance on accrual

basis-

iii) Transfers lrom Government and other entities
The Kenya Roads Act 2007 provides the Authority may receive all monies fiom any other

source provided for or donated or lent to the Authority. Such monies are recogtized as they

accrue in the period in which the transfer becomes binding at fair value, in the 'Statement of
Financial Performance', unless the collectability is in doubt. The fair values can be

determined by reference to the market rate.

Where a transfer is subject to conditions that if unfulfilled require a retum ofthe transferred

resources they are recognized as a liability until the condition is fulfilled.

iv) Interest Income
Interest income and expense, including interest income from non-derivative financial assets

are recognized at fair value through the Statement of Financial Performance using the

12
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effective interest method. Interest income is accrued on a time basis and is calculated on call

and fixed deposits held with approved banking institutions.

u) Rental Income
Rental income arising from operating leases on investment properties is accounted for on a

straightline basis over the lease terms and included in revenue.

vi) Other income
Other income arising fiom sale oftenders and fees levied by the Authority is accounted for
on receipt

(g) Financiallnstruments
(i) Financial assets

Financial assets within the scope of IPSAS 29 are classified as financial assets at fair value

through surplus or deficit, receivables, held+o-maturity investments or available-for-sale

financial assets, as appropriate. The Authority determines the classification of its financial

assets at initial recognition.
Receivables

Receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are

not quoted in an active market. They arise when the Authority provides money or services

directly to a debtor with no intention of trading the receivable. Receivables mainly arise

from non-exchange transactions which accrue in the ordinary course ofbusiness and there

is no intention of trading the receivable.

Receivables are recogrized initially at the fair value. They are subsequently measured at

amortized costs using the effective interest method less provision for impairment.

A provision for impairment ofreceivables is made when there is objective evidence that the

Authority will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of
receivables.

The carrying value less discounts and any impairment provision of impairment is assumed

to approximate their fair values. For financial instruments such as short term receivables, no

disclosure offair value is required when the carrfng amount is a reasonable approximation

of fair value.

The Authority is allocated funds by the Govemment and Kenya Roads Board in accordance

with the approved budget and allocation criteria set out in the Kenya Roads Board Act, 1999.

The amounts allocated are referred to as 'disbursements' and are released to the Authority
based on the disbursement schedule. Any amounts not released at any time are recognized

as receivables.

Receivables are classified as current assets if payment is due within one year or less. Ifnot,
they are presented as non-current assets.

(ii) FinancialLiabilities

13
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Financial liabilities within the scope of IPSAS 29 are classified as financial liabilities at fair
value through surplus or deficit or loans and borrowings, as appropriate. The Authority
determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition.
Payables
Payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary
course ofbusiness from suppliers. Payables also include payments in respect social benefits

where formal agreements for specific .rmounts exist.

Payables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost

using the effective interest method. The historical cost carrying amount ofpayables subject

to the normal credit terms usually approximates fair value. Payables are classified as current

liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of
business iflonger). Ifnot, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

(h) Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Authority has a present obligation (legal or constructive)

as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Authority will be required to settle the

obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate ofthe consideration required to

settle the present obligation at the reporting period end, taking into account the risks and

uncertainties surrounding the obligation.

Contingent Liabilities
The Authority does not recognize a contingent liability, but discloses details of any

contingencies in the notes to the financial statements, unless the possibility ofan outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits or service potential is remote.

Contingent assets

The Authority does not recognize a contingent asset, but discloses details ofa possible asset

whose existence is contingent on the occurrence or non-occurrence ofone or more uncertain

future events not wholly within the control of the Authority in the notes to the financial
statements.

Contingent assets are assessed continually to ensure that developments are appropriately
reflected in the financial statements. If it has become virtually certain that an inflow of
economic benefits or service potential will arise and the asset's value can be measured

reliably, the asset and the related revenue are recognized in the financial statements of the

period in which the change occurs

(i) Operating leases

Leases of assets where a sigrrificant proportion of the risks and rewards of ownership are

retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments made/received under

operating leases are charged/credited to the statement offinancial performance on a straight

14



hLtu t Rrttrl li,,a'l' lttrh,,tirr
l unl llrf,, t untl I ittttttt itl .\ttttt't t'nt\

I t't th' t' tt' ' 'l"l ;t' lnrt' )tt) :

line basis over the lease period. Prepaid operating lease rentals are recognized as assets and

are subsequently amortized over the lease period.

() Provision for liabilities and charges

Provisions are recognized when the company has a present legal or constructive obligation

as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodlng economic

benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate ofthe amount of the

obligation can be made.

(k) Property, plant and equipment

All categories of property, plant and equipment are initially recognized at cost and

subsequently carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment

losses. Cost includes expenditure directly attributable to the acquisition of the assets.

Computer software, including the operating system that is an integral part of the related

hardware is capitalized as part ofthe computer equipment. All other items ofproperty, plant

and equipment are subsequently carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and

accumulated impairment losses.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recogtized as a separate

asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with

the item will flow to the company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Repairs

and maintenance expenses are charged to the statement offinancial performance in the year

in which they are incurred.

Where an asset is acquired in a non-exchange transaction for nil or nominal consideration

the asset is initially measured at its fair value

Depreciation is calculated using the straight line method to write down the cost ofeach asset

to its residual value over its estimated useful life, and 360 day calendar year adopted, using

the following annual rates:

Buildings
Computers

Fumiture and Fittings & Fixtures

Technical Equipment/Machinery

Motor Vehicles
Road Infrastructure Assets

Rate - 7o

2.5%
33.3%
12.5%

t25%
25.0%

As no parts of items ofproperty, plant and equipment have a cost that is significant in relation

to the total cost of the item, the same rate of depreciation is applied to the whole item.

The assets'residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted ifappropriate, at each

balance sheet date. Gains and losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment are

determined by reference to their canfng amount and are taken into account in determining

operating surplus.

15
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(l) Specialised PublicServiceAssets-InfrastructureAssets
Intemational Valuation Standards Committee defines specialized public asset as an asset,

owned and/or controlled by a govemmental or quasi-govemmental entity, for the provision
of some public service or good.

The authority deals in construction of roads infiastructure which falls in this category and

constitutes part ofproperty, plant and equipment within the meaning of IPSASs.

Like other assets, all specialized public service assets provide either service potential or
future economic benefit. Service potential is a measure ofthe capacity ofan asset to provide
services or benefits to those that use that asset. Future economic benefit is a measure of the

capacity of an asset to provide monetary benefits to those that hold or own that asset.

(m) Constructioncontracts
A construction contract is defined as a contract specifically negotiated for the construction
ofan asset. Contract costs are recognized as assets in the period in which they are incurred.

Where the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated reliably, costs are recognized
by reference to the stage of completion of the contract activity at the end of the reporting
period, measured based on the proportion of contract costs incurred for work performed to
date relative to the estimated total contract costs, except where this would not be

representative of the stage of completion. Variations in contract work, claims and incentive
payments e included to the extent that the amount can be measured reliably and its payment

is considered probable.

The Authority uses the 'percentage-of-completion method' to determine the appropriate
trmount to recognize in a given period. The stage of completion is measured by reference to

the contract costs incurred up to the end of the reporting period as a percentage of total
estimated costs for each contract. Costs incurred in the year in connection with future activity
on a contract are excluded from contract costs in determining the stage of completion. They
are presented as inventories, prepayments or other assets, depending on their nature.

Progress billings not yet paid to the contractors and retention are included within 'Payables'
in the statement offinancial position.

Costs incurred on maintenance contracts are charged in the statement of financial
performance in the period in which they are incurred.

(n) Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

At each reporting period end, based on internal and extemal sources, the Authority reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there is any

indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. Ifany such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the

impairment loss.

Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the

Authority estimates the recoverable value ofthe asset.
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Impairment losses are recognized as an expense in the Statement of Financial Performance

whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable arnount. Where an

impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the

revised estimate of its recoverable amount. A reversal of impairment loss is limited to the

assets carrfng amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been

recognized in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is credited to the Statement of
Financial Performance in the year reversals are recognized.

(o) Inventories

Inventory is measured at cost upon initial recognition. To the extent that inventory was

received through non-exchange transactions (for no cost or for a nominal cost), the cost of
the inventory is its fair value at the date ofacquisition.

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition is accounted

for, based on purchase cost using the weighted average cost method.

After initial recognition, inventory is measured at the lower ofcost and net realizable value.

However, to the extent that a class of inventory is distributed or deployed at no charge or for
a nominal charge, that class of inventory is measured at the lower of cost and current

replacement cost.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of operations, less

the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale,

exchange, or distribution.

Inventories are recognized as an expense when deployed for utilization or consumption in
the ordinary course ofoperations ofthe Authority

(p) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash at bank, short{erm deposits on

call and highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less, which
are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject to insigrificant risk of
changes in value. Bank account balances include amounts held at the various commercial

banks at the end of the financial year.

(q) Nature and purpose of reserves

The Authority creates and maintains reserves in terms of specific requirements. The net

assets are made ofup of desigrrated funds and accumulated reserve which are explained as

follows:
(i) Staff Mortgage Fund

The Authority established independently managed staff Mortgage Scheme Funds for
members of staff. The scheme is based on a minimum cash balance at the Kenya Commercial
Bank account commensurate with the mortgage amount. This cash balance, built up for the

scheme as a revolving fund.

(ii) Capital Fund
17



h,'tr r llrrntl R,nls lutltotitr
lnttttl Rtpttrt tnrl I intnLirl .\trrtnLnr'

I lr rht rtrr rnl, l itll' .lu , :0: i

The Authority proposes to establish a Capital Fund in for the purpose of purchase of office
property plant and equipment.

(i ii) A c c u m u late d s u rp I u se dDeJi c it
Accumulated surpluses/ (deficit) represent excess operating revenue over expenditure which

has accumulated over the years. These funds are available for utilization in the Authority's

operations in the subsequent years.

(iv) Development Fund

Development fund represents the Authority's investment in infrastructure assets as funded

by the exchequer development vote.

(r) Changes in accounting policies and estimates

The Authority recognizes the effects of changes in accounting policy retrospectively. The

effects ofchanges in accounting policy are applied prospectively ifretrospective application
is impractical.

(s) Employee Benefits

The Authority provides retirement benefits for its eligible employees. The Authority
operates defined contributions provident fund administered by an independent

administration company and trustees and which is funded by both the employee and

employer.

The Authority and its employees also contribute to the statutory pension scheme, The

National Social Security Funds (NSSF). Contributions are determined by the local statute.

The Authority also sets aside on monthly basis the gratuity for its ernployees who are on

contract basis.

The contributions to fund obligations for the payment of retirement benefits are charged to

the statement offinancial performance in the year in which they become payable.

The total expense recogrrized in the income statement of Shs Million (2021-2022: Shs 138.2

Million) represents contributions payable to the plan by the Authority at rates specified in
the rules of the plan. The expense has been included within the staff pension cosls under

staff costs.

(t) Comparatives
Where necessary, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to changes in
presentation of the Financial Statements as required by Intemational Public Sector

Accounting Standards and any amendment whenever necessary in the current year

(u) Subsequent Events

There have been no events subsequent to the financial year end with a significant impact on

the financial statements for the year ended June 30,2022.

18
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, JUDGEMENTS AND ASSUMPTIONS
In the process of appllng the Authority's accounting policies, the directors have made

estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and

disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities as at the date of the financial statements and

the reported amounts ofrevenues and expenses during the reporting period.

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience

and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable

under the circumstances. Although these estimates are based on the directors' knowledge of
current events and actions, actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underllng assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the

revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the

revision affects both current and future periods.

(a) Critical Judgments in Applying the Authority's Accounting Policies

In the process of appllng the Authority's accounting policies, judgnents have been made

in determining:

o Whether the assets are impaired;
o The classification offinancial assets;

. The going concem.
(b) Critical Accounting Estimates and Assumptions

The key areas ofjudgnents and sources of uncertainty in estimation are as set out below:

(i) ContingentLiabilities
As disclosed in these financial statements, the Authority is exposed to various contingent

liabilities in the normal course of business. The directors evaluate the status of these

exposures on a regular basis to assess the probability of the Authority incurring related

liabilities. However, provisions are only made in the financial statements where, based on

the directors' evaluation, a present obligation has been established.

(ii) Provision for Doub{ul Debts

The Authority reviews its receivables to assess the tikelihood of impairment. Provision for
impairment ofreceivables is established when there is objective evidence that the Authority
will not be able to collect all amounts due. Where necessary, an estimation of the amounts

irrecoverable is made in that year. Provision for impairment shall be recognized upon

approval by the Board of Directors.

(iii) 0ther Provisions
Other provisions are recognized when the Authority has legal or constructive obligation as

a result ofpast events, for which it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be

required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the

obligation.
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(iv) Impairment Losses

At each reporting period end, the Authority reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and

intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered

an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is

estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss.

Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the

Authority estimates the recoverable value of the asset. Any impairment losses are recognized

as an expense immediately. Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount ofthe asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount. A reversal

of an impairment loss is recognized as income immediately.
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6. Road Maintenance Lery
10% C onstitr:ency Links Roads

I 0o% Special allocaticrn

22% C o rstituency Roads Fund

RMLF Operations

Total Road Maintenarrce l-ely

7, Other Government Grants
Developnrnt Projects

Spot lrrproverrrcnt Projects(Public Participation)

Administrative fi.lds
Total Govemnrnt Grants

Deferred Irrconrc

Trarsfer to Developrrrnt Fwrd

8. Development Partners Grants
Etnopean Union

L'Agence Frangaise de D6velopporrn(AFD)
Gernnn DeveSnrent Bank(KFW)
AFD-lnterest
BADEA
Total Developmenl Partrrcrs'Grants

9. Finance Income
Interest from deposits

Total Finance inconp

10. Other Income
Receipts from sale oftenders

Disposal of Assets

Recall of Perbrnrance Gu"arantees

Other lrvies
Total other incorne

26,409,596 27,725,66',7

2022-2023
Shs'000

5,615,091

4,648,427

12,352,473

3,793,60s

2021-2022
Shs'000

3,329,411

13,s34,796

7,350,743
3,510,7 t6

22,641,850
15,060,064

l9,l 60,087

t7,799,054

37 ,70t,914 36,959,142

(22,64r,8s0) (19,160,087)

15,060,064 t7 ,799,054

44,795

3,047

451 ,383 476,150
454,430 s20,94s

899,7 56 1,225,481

899,7 s6 1,225,481

194 545

57t
48,226

1,9693,108

3,302 5t,31l

ll. Rental Revenue
Recefts from operating lease rental

Total Rental revemre

1,125 1,075

1,125 1,075

Rental income is rent income received fiom various Regional Office camps. The propeties
were inherited from our Parent Ministry.
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12. Road Works Expenditure
RMLF lO%-Critical Link Roads

RMLF 22%- C orstituency Roads Fwd
I 0%o- Special Allocaticn
Donor Frmded Projects
Refi:rd Dorrcr EUIKFW
GoK Spot Inprovenrnt Funds

Cofte Cess

Eqrrilisatbn Fund

Total Road Works Experues

13. Directors'Costs
a.Executive Directors
Ernoh:rnents

b.Non Executive Dirccton
ErrnhrrrEnts

Training and feld activities

Total Directors Costs

14. Employment Costs
Salaries and Wages

Persion and Gratuity costs

Medbal ard Irsurarpe
Training ard Developrrrnt
Travelling and accornodation
Otlrer Staff welfire costs

Total employrnent Costs

15. Repairs and maintenance

Otrce building
Ftrrnihrre and equipnrnt
Motor vehicbs
Total Repairs and M ainte nance

13,141,972 18,072,580

9,358 75,907

2022-2023
Shs'000

3,647,667
8,202,645

12,240,t70
749,423

2021-2022
Shs'000

3,994,932
7,950,824
9,232,669

870,8 l3

37,991,235 40,197,725

I1,606 I1,008
1 1,606 1 r,008

4,798
4,145

6,184
14,894

8,943 2t,O78
20,549 32,085

2,O24,046
233,208
99,368

149,127
423,093

40,s24

l ,88 l ,261
218,502

77,840
t83,945
428,905
30,999

2,969,366 2,82t,451

1t,867
74,209
49,1O4

20,112
99,249
49,769

135,179 169,130
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2022-2023

Shs'000

2021-2022

Shs'000
16. Other Operating Expenses
Publb relatiors and Corporate aftirs
Ardit Fees

Advertiserrrnt and publicity

Rent ard Rates

Electicity and Water

Cleanirg ard sanitatbn

Fuel and other vehicle nrrning expenses

Secuity
Corsuftarrcies

kgal Fees

Prirting and Statkrnery

CRC and tender evahration Experses

Telephone, [ntemet and Postage

Bank Ctrarges

Offce experses

Perfo rrnance C ontractirg
Total Other Ope rating expenses

Cash in hand and Bank

S taf mortgage Fund
Fixed term deposits

Total Cash and Cash equivale nts

18,975

3,000
)a ))a
19,704
10,91 I

1t,760
179,715
42,989
41,616
15,731

42,867
178,236

34,0 l3
23,t81
13,393

63,907

20,460
3,000

10,690

16,8t7
10,825

t2,891
173,468
il r ,091

10,408

4,755
41,091

216,437
30,573
15,304

19,616

63,386
729,221 760,8t2

Taxes-The authority paid Corporation Tax on prior year Interest income

17. Depreciation and Amortization
Property Plant and equiprrrcnt

Total Deprcciation Expense

87,465 t20,152
87,465 120,152

18. Cash and cash equivalents

37,106,058
1,071

l 1 , 194,300

23,542,103
1,119

20,984,284
48,301,429 44,527 ,506

The cash and bank balances as the funds are held with sound financial institutions
approved by Central Bank ofKenya as follows:
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KCB Bank Kenya limited

Eqtdy Bank Kenya Limited

Cooperative Bank Kenya Limited

NCBA Bank Kenya Limited

Cash in Hand

Total cash in hand ad bank

2022-2023

Shs'000

2021-2022

Shs'000

44,162,536
t25,O44

56,024

183,805

9'7

47 ,82t,137
193,360

I18,069
168,863

48,301,429 44,527,506

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise balances

with less than three months'maturity fiom the date ofacquisition, including cash in hand,

deposits held at call with banks and other short term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months

19. Taxation
Current Inconre Charge

Tax Charge on Rental Inconr
Tax Charge on Interest Inconp
Deftrred Tax

Original and Reversal of Tenporary Dftrences
Income Tax Experse Reported in the Staternent

762,337 413,801

762,337.4t 413,801.31

20. a)Receivables from Exchange
i) Receivables fmm Exchange transactions(Current)
Contractors advarres 20,173,825 19,921,388

Total Receivables from Exchange transactions 20,173,825 19,921 ,388

ii) Receivables from Exchange transactions(Iang Term)

Contractors advarres

Total Receivables

Crnrent Portbn trarsfrned to current Receivables

Total Non CurrrntReceivables

Total Receivables from Exchange transactions
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2022-2023 2021-2022

Shs'000 Shs'000
iii)Ageing Analysis for Receiveables from Exchange Transactions

Curent % of total Conparative % of tota

Contmctors sdvances

lrss Than I Year

Betweenl -2 Yean

Between 2-3 Yean

Over 3 Fars
Total 20,,173,,825 100% 19,921,388 r000/o

iv) Reconciliation for Impairment Allowance on Receivable from Exchange
Transactions

t78,577

4,760,016

(8s4,643)

16,089,875

4,689,935

(858,421)

16,089,875

24Yo

-40

8t%
004

2021-2022

Jur22

L/O

24Vo

-4%

800

Impairrnent Allorryance / hovision
At The Beginning of the Year

Additional Provisions during ttr year

Recovered During the year

Written offduring the Year
At the erd of the Year

20(b) Receivables from Non Exchange transactions
Adrances to Staff
Deposits ard PrepaynEnts

Other Receivables(Accnred Inconr )
Total Receivables fmm Non Exchange transacl

Total rcceivables

2022-2023

Jur23

25,806
85,537

742,900

____9:!]44_
21,O28,069

43,271

64,223

I,558,302

1,665,795

21,587 ,183

Ageing Analysis Receivables from Non-Exchange transactions

kss Ttran I Year

Betweenl -2 Years

Between 2-3 Years

Over 3 years

Total

852,032 99.74%

0.00%

0.00%

0.26%

t,622,525

t9,731

23,539

97/%
t.z%

r.4%

0.0%2,2t2
854,244 t00o 1,665,795 100.0%

Receivables constitute short term liquid assets which are recoverable within one year.

Grants receivable represent development grants due from the National Govemment. The

maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair value of each class of

receivable mentioned above. The Authority does not hold any collateral as security. The

aged analysis of receivables is as follows:
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21. Inventories
Corsunabb stores

Total lnventories

2022-2023
Shsr000

3,114

2021-2022
Shs'000

6,644

3,114 6,644
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22. Property Plant and equipment
Period ended 30th June 2023 Builditrg

Shs'000 Shs'000 Shs'000 Shs'000

trUniturr
and Flttirgs

196,314

3,525

Motor
Vehicles

674,322

Office

Equipmem

58,271

5,325

CoryuteIs
and

Softuare

sh'000

345,612

9,211

Plant and

M achine ry
Total

1,450,955

18,902

Shs'000 Shs'000

56,503

Cost

At lst July 2022

Additbns

At 30th Jurp 2023

Depreciation

At I st July 2022

Clnrge br ttr lear

n9,932
841

120,773

26,210

3,768

199,839 674,322 63,596 354,824 56,503 1,469,857

150,664

9,020

s99,894

37,809

37,904

5,989

288,956

30,422

53,693

456

1,157,319

87,465

At 30th Jue 2023

Net Book Value

At 30th Jurp 2023 90,795 40,155 36,6t9 19,704 35,445

The goss carrying anourr offrlly depreciated property, phlt and eqryrElf armunted to Ksls 989,846,468

29,978 159,684 637,703 43,892 319,379 54,149 1,244,784

2,354 225,073
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22. Property Plant and Equipment
Period ended 30th June 2022 f,lilding

Shs'000 Shs'000 Shs'000 Shs'000

674,322

Furniture
and Fittings

189,438

6,876

Motor
Vehicles

Office
Equipment

53,767

4,5M

33,590
4,314

Computers
rnd

Software
Shs'000

3tl,337
34,276

Plent and
Machinery

Total

Shs'000 Shs'000

56,503

Cost
At lst July 2021

Additions

At 30th Septernber 2021

Depreciation
At lst July 2021

Charge for the year

108,353

11,579

1,393,719

57,235

r19,932 t96,3t4 674,322 58,271 345,612 56,503 I,450,955

23,531
2,679

141,390

9,274
536,753

63,140
248,666

40,290
53,236

4s6
r,03'7,167

t20,152

Ar 30th June 2022 26,210 150,664 599,894 37,9M 288,956 53,693 1 ,1 57,3 19

Net Book Value
At 30th June 2022

93,'722 45,651 2,81 1 293,63574,428 20,367 56,656
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2022-2023

Shs'000

2021-2022

Shs'000

I 18,640,409

5,534,710

t24,175,119

15,786,458

23. Road Infrastructure Assets
At lst July

Trarsftr from work in progress

24.Capital Work In Progress
At lst July

AddiCnns

Transfrr to Road Infasttrtrne Asset

25,Payables
(a) Exchange Trans actions

Cunent:
Due to Conlractors

Ottrr Trade payabbs(General Sryplien)
StaffCrediton
Ottrcr Palabbs(Accruals & provisions)

Total current

t39,961,577 124,175,119

t79,892,966
33,s88,328

(1s,786,4s8)

ls5,181,085

30,246,592
(5,s34,710)

197,694,836 179,892,966

Road Maintenance Levy Fund( RMLF) Contribution towards Work-In-Progress for Financial
year was ksh2,116,573.974.63 being its conkibution towards co-financing of infrastructure
projects.

54,227,O1t

529,230

38,629,061

2,047,725

347

245,807310,1 l9
55,066,422 40,922,940

(b)Non Currcnt:
Contract Retentbn

Total Non Current
7,740,381 '7,985,1s2

7;740,381 '7,985,152

62,806,803 48,908,092

Current trade and other payables are expected to be settled in Authority's normal operating cycle

and within twelve months after the reporting period and are not attached to an unconditional right
to defer payment ofthe liability.
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26. Employee Benefit obligations

As at I st July 2022

Additional Provisiors

Provisbn r.rilised

Ksh'000
69.108

52,543

Ksh'000
69,090

Ksh'000
138,197
(,) s/.1

As at 30th June 2023 l2 t,65l 69,090 t90,741

27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
The Authority has an integrated risk management framework/ strategy. The Authority's approach

to risk management is based on risk govemance structures, risk management policies, risk
identification, measurement, monitoring and reporting. The risk management policies and systems

are reviewed regularly to ensure they are in tandem with the micro and macro environment,

regulatory guidelines, industry practice, market conditions as well as the services offered.

The Authority recognizes the critical role the risk management will continue to play in its endeavor

to carry out its business in a dynamic environment. The Board is committed to ensure that

corporate govemance and risk management are deeply entrenched in the Authority's strategy and

culture. An elaborate risk management strategy that will provide direction on matters ofpolicy and

guide the implementation and control has been developed.

The Authority core business involves major engagements with financial transactions and processes

which pose certain risks. Three types of risks are reported as part of the risk profile namely

operational, strategic and business continuity risks.

(i) Operational risks are events, hazards, variances or opportunities which could influence the

achievement ofthe Board's compliance and operational objectives.

(ii) Strategic risk is a significant unexpected or unpredictable change or outcome beyond what

was factored into the organization's strategy and business model which could have an impact

on the entity's performance.

(iii) Business continuity risks are those events, hazards, variances and opportunities which could

influence the continuity of the entity.

The Members of the Board have the overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of
the Authority's risk management framework. The Authority has delegated its risk management to

the Audit and Risk Committee. One of the responsibilities of this committee is to review risk
management strategies to ensure that an effective efficient and transparent system of risk
management is maintained for sustainable management of the Authority.

The Authority's exposure to risks, its objectives, policies and processes for managing the risk and

the methods used to measure it have been consistently applied in the years presented, unless
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otherwise stated. The Authority aims therefore to achieve an appropriate balance between the risk

and retum and minimize potential adverse effects on its financial perforrnance.

The financial management objectives and policies are as outlined below:

a) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Authority will not have sufficient financial resources to meet its

obligations when they fall due or will have to do so at excessive costs. This risk can arise from

mismatches in the timing ofcash flows from revenue and capital/ operational outflows, assets and

liabilities according to their maturity profiles and can occur where cash flow streams have been

discontinued, etc. Funding risk arises when the necessary liquidity to fund itliquid asset positions

cannot be met at expected terms and when required.

The objective ofthe liquidity and funding management is to ensure that all foreseeable operational

and capital commitment expenditure can be met under both normal and stressed conditions and

the mismatch is controlled in line with allowable risk levels.

The Authority's has adopted an overall balance sheet approach which consolidates all sources and

uses of liquidity, while aiming to maintain a balance between liquidity, cash flows and interest rate

considerations. The Authority's Iiquidity and funding management process includes:

. Projecting cash flows and considering the cash required and optimizing the short term

requirements as well as the long term funding, maintaining balance sheet liquidity ratios,

o Maintaining/soliciting for a diverse range of funding sources with adequate back up facilities,

The Authority has an established corporate govemance structure and process of managing risks

regarding guarantees and contingent liabilities.

The primary sources ofrevenue for the Authority are receipts from lhe Kenya Roads Board, mainly
receipts from Road Maintenance Levy Fund, and Grants from the central Govemment and

Development Partners.

The table below summarizes the maturity analysis for financial liabilities to their remaining

contractual maturities
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Period f,nded 30th Jme 2023

fh-E to contractors

Ottrcr Trade Payabbs

StafCredtors

Con[-act Retentbn

DeGned kronr
Othr Payables

Due to contractors

Other Trade Payables

StaffCreditors

Contact Retention

Defened Income

Other Payables

Less Than

I Month
Between l-3
M onths

529.230

Between 3-

12 Months Over One Yerr

54,227,073

7,740,381

310,119

E39J4E.95 54.,227,073 7,740)Et

Year Ended 30th June 2022

Between 3-

12 Months Ove r One Year

38529,061

2,M1,124.84

347.41

7985,151.98

245,807.00

2,293,879.25 38,629,061 7,985,151.98

b) Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate

because of changes in foreign exchange rates, prices and interest rates. The objective of market

risk management policy is to protect and enhance the Statements of Financial Position and

perforrnance by managing and controlling market risk exposures within acceptable parameters,

and to optimize the funding ofbusiness operations and facilitate capital expansion. The Authority
is exposed to the following market risks:

(, Currency Risk

The currency risk is minimal as most ofcash and cash equivalents held with banks are dominated

in Kenya Shillings.

(i, Price Risk

Kenya Roads Board collects Kshs. l8 per litre ofdiesel and petrol imported into the country, 320%

of which is disbursed to the Authority. The Authority is exposed to the extent that the levy on

diesel and petrol is reduced or eliminated due to changes in the intemational fuel prices, inflation
or other macro indicators.

Less Than

I Month
Betwee n 1-3

Months
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The Road Maintenance Levy Fund is backed up by an Act of Parliament and changes thereof
require approval by Parliament.

(W Interest Rate Risk
The Authority's financial condition may be adversely affected as a result of changes in interest

rate levels. The interest rate risk is minimal as the Authority does not have any borrowings.

c) Credit Risk

The maximum exposure ofthe Authority to credit risk as at the balance sheet date is as follows:

Period Ended 30th June 2023

Past Due Drte Prst Due

but not Date rnd

lmpairtd impaircd Totd
Fully
Perhrming

Adrarrces to Staf

Corfracton adrarces

Deposits ard Prepaymils

Otlrr Receivables

Cash at Bank

Period Ended 30th June 2022

Adrarpes to Staff

Contsactors advarces

Deposits ard Plepaymrls

Othr Receirabks

Cash at Bank

26)74

20,113,8N

85J37

742,W

48)t0,770

26,574

20,t73,825

85J37

7AW
483r0,770

69,339,606 69,339,606

Fully
Perfondng

Prst Due Drte

but not
Impairrd

Put Due

Dste and

imprircd Totsl

4327t

19,921,388

64,223

1,558,302

44527JM

43271

19,921,388

64223

1,558,302

44,527,506

66,114,690 66,114,690

d) Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk ofdirect or indirect loss arising from a wide variety ofcauses associated

with the Authority's processes, personnel, technology and infrastructure and from extemal factors

other than credit, market and liquidity risks such as legal and regulatory requirements and generally

acceptable standarrds of corporate behavior.

33



htn!u llttnrl ll,,tJ' lrtrh,,t irt
lnrrtul Rrl,,trr tn,l I intn, i,tl \ttt, t,1t rt\

I ot tlt, r'L'tr trtl,,l lll" .lrtnL lr)) l

The Authority seeks to ensure that key operational risks are managed in a timely and effective
manner through a framework of policies, procedures and tools to identi$, assess, monitor and

report such risks.

The Authority's objective is to manage operational risk so as to balance the avoidance offinancial
losses and damage to the Authority's reputation with overall cost effectiveness and to avoid control
procedures that restrict initiative and creativily.

The primary responsibility for the development and implementation of controls to address

operational risk is assigned to senior management. The responsibility is supported by the

development ofoverall standards for the management ofoperational risk in the following areas:

(i) Requirements for appropriate segregation of duties, including the independent authorization
oftransactions;

(ii) Requirements for the reconciliation and monitoring of hnancial transactions;
(iii) Compliance with regulatory and legal requirementsl
(iv) Documentation of controls and procedures;
(v) Requirements for the yearly assessment of operational risks faced and the adequacy of

controls and procedures to address the risks identified;
(vi) Requirement for the reporting ofoperational losses and proposed remedial action;
(vii) Training and professional development;
(viii) Ethical and business standards; and
(ix) Risk mitigation, including insurance where it is effective.

Operational risks are managed by the Intemal Audit function established to spearhead and

coordinate risk management activities. The measures taken include proactively identifying,
analyzing and mitigating risks in all facets of the business.

e) Compliance and Regulatory Risk

Compliance and regulatory risk includes the risk ofnon-compliance with regulatory requirements

The Authority has complied with all extemally imposed requirements throughout the year.

f) Legal Risk

Legal risks is the risk of unexpected loss, including reputational loss, arising from defective

transactions or contracts, claims being made or some other event resulting in a liability or the loss

for the authority, failure to protect the title to and inability to control the rights to assets of the

Authority (including intellectual property right), changes in law, or jurisdictional risk.

The Authority manages legal risk through the legal function, legal risk policies and procedures

and the effective use of intemal controls and extemal lawyers.
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28. Related Parties Balances and Transactions
The Authority regards a related party as a person or an entity with the ability to exert control

individually or jointly, or to exercise significant influence over the Authority, or vice versa.

Members of key management are regarded as related parties and comprise the Director General

and senior managers.

(a) Related party transactions

The following transactions were carried out with related parties during the year.

2022-2023 2021-2022
Shs'000 Shs'000

(i) Receipt and Transfers

The Governnpnt ofKenya 37,701,914 36,959,142

Kenya Roads Board 26,409,596 27,725,667

64,1I1,510 64,684,808

(i i ) D i re ct o rs E mo I u me nt s

Ermhnnents - Executive directors

Enmh.urpnts - Non Excutive directors

Training ard filed activities

20,549 32,085

(b) Outstanding balances arising from non-exchange transactions
The following were outstanding balances with related parties as at 30m June 2023

Receivable from related parties

Payable to related parties 69,090 69,090

Rece ables from rehted parties can be analysed as follows

The Govennrrnt of Kenya

Kenyr Roads Board

Key rnanagenrnt persorurel

Payables to related parties can be analysed as follows:

Key nranagenrcnt persorurel 69,090 69,090

29. Contingent Assets and liabilities
i) ContingentLiabilities

Due to the uncertainty ofthe outcome ofour Legal cases, it is not practically possible to estimate

the resulting liabilities and the effect they are likely to have on the results ofthe Authority's

I 1,606

4,798

4,145

I I,008
6,184

14,894
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operations, financial position or liquidity. Therefore no provision has been made in the financial
statements.

2022-2023

Shs'000

2021-2022

Shs'000
ii) Contingent assets

Contingent Assets
Adrrarce Cuarartrees

Perfornnrrce Guarantee

30. CapitalCommitments

Auhorised ard contracted for

Non-cancellable operating lease rentals are payable as follows:

Operating lease rentals

Norrcarrcellable operating base rentals are payabb as fulbws

Shs'000
21,509,582

27,108,035

Shs'000
20,384,746
23,308,035

48,6t7,6t8 43,692,782

2022-2023

Jtn-22
Shs'000

2021-2022

Jun2l
Shs'000

Witlrin ore ),ear
Later than one lear br.r w hin five pars

The Authority has leased oIfice premises under an operating lease. The lease typically runs for 5
years with an option for renewal. Lease payments are increased accordingly to reflect market
rentals. The Authority does not have an option to purchase the leased asset at the expiry ofthe
lease period. There are no contingent rents recognized in the Statement ofFinancial
Performance-
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3f. Reconciliation of surplus as per Budget statement and statement of financial
performance

2022-2023

Jun23

sh'000

Suptrs asper satanent of Budget and Actualamounts B\nl
[,ess: Taxatbn QASY)
Add: Transfer ofRoadwork Costs to Infrastructue assets

L.ess: Transfer to Devebpnent Fund

Add: Transfer ftom Defened Income

Surplus@efcit) u per Strtenent offirsncial perfrrmrnnce (629,416)

32. Fair value
The directors consider that there is no material difference between the fair value and carrying
value ofthe Authority's financial assets and liabilities, where fair value details have not been

presented.

33. Events after the reporting perlod
There were no material adjusting and non- adjusting eveots after the reporting period

34. [Jltlmate and holdlng entlfy
The Authority is a State Corporation under the Ministry of Roads and Transport State Department
of Roads. Its ultimate parent is the Govemment of Kenya.

35. Currency
The financial statements are presented in Kenya Shillings (Kshs.'000)
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The following is the summary of issues that resulted in a qualified opinion of the extemal auditor on the financial stateme s for the year 2021/22,

and management comments that were provided to the auditor. We have nominated focal persors to resolve the various issues as shown below with

the associated time frame within which we expect the issues to be resolved.

Ref. No
on Audit
Report

Issue / Observation bv the Auditor M!nrgement Comments Focal Person to
resolve the Issue

Status: Resolved
or Not Resolved

Time
frame/
Ressons

Unreconciled Development Partner Grants
The Statement of financial performance and Note 8 of
the financial statement reflects Development Panners

Grant Totaling to ksh 520,945,000 in respect to Bank for
Economic Development in Afiica ( BADEA) ksh
476,150,000 and European Union ksh 44,795,000. Revie
of the project auditcd accounts revealed " Gilgil
Machinery" Road Project 6le tunded by BADEA
revealed that ksh 414,210,668 was disburscd to the
Project and ksh 5,000, was disbursed towards German
Development Bank (KFW) resulting to unexplained and
unreconciled variances of ksh 61,939,332 and Ksh
5,000,000 respectively.
In the circumstances, the accuracy ofdevelopment

partner grant amount of kh 520,945,000 could not be

confirmed.

Donor Funds are accounled on cash
basis while the main accounls are on
accrual. This creales timing diferences
in the treatme oflransactions. A
Reconci liat ion of t he diferences has
been resubmitled

Director General Resolved

2 Rosd Maiotenatrce Lery Fund ( RMLF)
The Statement of financial Performance and Note 12 to
the financial statemenls reflects road works expenditure
totaling to ksh 40,197,'725,000.lncluded in this
expenditure is RMLF 22% constituency Roads Fund of
kh 7,950,824,000 while the trial balance provided for
audit review reflected an amount of ksh 7,892,5 t 1,000
resulting to a variance of ksh 58,313,000 which was not
reconciled.

. Auditors obsemqtions are noted. fiis
dillerence of represented under Road

Works Force Account GL 9000100 of
ksh 58,312,969.97 Our Regionql oflces
execute works underforce account. This

is normal reported as part of 22?l'

Roads Work becquse lhe lunding
source in 220,6-

Director General Resolved
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Ref. No
on Audit
Report

Issue / Observation by the Auditor Managemcnt Commcnts Focal PersoD to
resolve the Issue

Status: Resolved
or Not Resolvcd

Time
frrme/
Reasons

Funher, the Expenditue of ksh 7,950,824,000 under
constituency roads fund and ksh 3,994,932,000 on
critical link roads against mad maintenance lery ofksh
7,510,716,000 and ksh 3,329,41 1,000 respectively,
rcsulting to over expenditure of ksh 440,108,000 and ksh
665,521,000 was not explained or supported. In addition,
the basis for thc allocation among the specific funds was
not provided.
ln the circumstances , the accuracy ofthe RMLF 22o/"

constituency Roads Fund amounl ofksh 7,950,824,000
and road maintenance levy fund expenditure of ksh
870,813.000 could not be confirmed.

. The Authority does roll over lunds from
the previous periods. Therefore the

currenl periods expenditure moy not

malch lhe currenl retiew-

3 Dotror Funded Projccts
The statement offinancial performance and Note l2 to
financial statement reflects road works expenditure
totaling to ksh 40,197,725,0000. Included in the road
works expenditure totaling to kh 40,197,725,000 is an

amount ofksh 870,813,000 under Donor Funded
Projects. However,review offinancial reconds under the
prj ects reveal ed that ksh 4 1 4 1 ,2 1 0,670., ks h 44,97 4,887
and Ksh 5,000,000 was disbumed to BADEA. EU and
KFW projects respcctively all totaling to ksh
464,627,441 rcsulting to an explained and $supported
variance of ksh 406,627,443 . ln addition . the
corresponding revenue for Gemran Develpomet Bank
(KFW) was not captured in thc statement offinancial
performance.
In the Circumstanccs, the accuracy of Donor funded
projecs ofksh 870,813,000 could not be confirmed.

Auditors comments qre well noted.
Management would like claily thqt the
mainfnancial taks in to qccounl accrued
road works GOK counterpart portion not

),et funded by GOK while the Donor
lunded Reports are accounted lor on
Cash Basis. Reconciliqtions for the
l/ario*s General Ledger (GL) for the
various lunds haw been altqched.

Director General Resolved

4 GoK Spot Improvement FuBds
Includcd in thc road work expenditure of
Kshs.40,l q7.725,000 is an amount of
Kshs.18,072.580,000 incurred under GoK Spot

Auditors comments qre well noled.

Appropriate analysis requested are Director General Resolved
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Ref. No
oIl Audit
Rcport

Issue / obserYation by the Auditor Managemcnt Comments Focrl Person to
resolYe the Issue

Status: Resolved
or Not Resolved

Time
frame/
Reasons

Improvement Funds. However, review of records
revealcd that IGhs.17,799,054,000 was received under
this item resulting in an under funding of
Kshs.2?3,526,000. Further, expenditure analysis
provided resulted to an amount of Kshs.l8,0'75,429,682
as analyzed below resulting to a variance of
Kshs.2,849,682 which was not explained or supported

hereby attached together with the

schedules.

5 Expenditure of Overheads from Bill One Deductions
Analysis ofexpcnditurc shows that a total of
Kshs.4,197,279,000 was spent on overheads out ofwhich
Kshs.804,082,000 was financed by Kenya Roads Board
Overheads allocation and Kshs.3,393,197,000 financed
by bill one deductions from contracts. It was funher
noted that Kshs.2,953,523,000 from bill one was used to
finance office operational cost which were non-roads
rclated expenditure. It was also noted that the Authority
rsported a surplus of Kshs.2,706,634.000 which was
financed from bill one cxpenditure of Kshs.2,953,523
000 as shown in thc table below;

Awlitors comments are noted. The

aurhoritv has continued to urilize s

allocotion lor operotions oppropriatelv
and wish to clarf.v os lollows:
-The Authorins overhead/operations
budget.for the period,,!as ksh 5,544,366
and Urilized 4,197,279,000 os indicated
in ourfinancials. This is within the budget
es t imal es for op eralions.
-Bill onelor various projects are used for
supemision purposes for the specifc
projecls qnd expensed against roadworks
because of inadeqwte overheads budgel
allocationlrom KRB.

Director General Resolved

6 Unsupported Security Erp€mes
The statement of financial performance and Note l6 to
the financial statements reflects other operating costs
totalling to Kshs.1,174,613,000. lncluded in this amount
is an expenditure ofKshs.l I 1,091,000 incurred on
security ofwhich an amount is Kshs.45,457,960 paid for
arbitration proceedings between the Authority and a

security firm. No explanation was providcd on why the
expenditurc was not charged under legal fees. Review of
records indicated that security services pending bill for
security firm amounted to Kshs.27,500,000. The basis
for the payment of Kshs.45,457,960 was not provided.

-The Poyment was for on arbitalion
decision in favour of Total Securilv for
security sen'ices ojlered the Authoriry.
-Total Security requestedfor the Paynent
to be made directly lo the Low.ver
Nvaanga and Mughisd Adlocstes ( Copv
Auached)
Babs Security- Payments were mode
under demand Notice copies oltached fol
your re\,iew

Director General Resolved
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Ref. No
oD Audit
Report

Issue / Observation by the Auditor Mansgement Commcnts Focal Person to
resolve th€ Issue

Status: R$olYed
or Not Resolved

Time
frame/
Reesons

The statement offinanciAl performance reflects
employment costs totalling to Kshs.2,82l,45l,000 which
includes salaries and wages totaling to
Kshs.l,88l,26l,000. Included in the amount is
Kshs.6.6l7,168 paid to intsms engaged during the ycar.

Scrutiny ofthe approved intems' payroll for the month
of April. 2022 revealed inconsistencies between the
intems' payroll and the payroll reconciliation

insccuracies in lhe reporls generaled
which have since been corrected. A cop),
ofthe Intem Payroll summary report has

been attochedlor your review

9 Cash rDd Crsh Equivdents
The statement of financial position and as discloscd in
Note l8 to the financial statements reflects cash and cash
equivalents balance of Kshs.,14,527,506,000. Review of
bank rcconciliation statements in respcct ofRMLF
Operations Account, Salaries Account and Roadworks
account under Headquarters revealed unprescnted
cheques which had gone stalc amounting to
Kshs.25,648,898, Kshs.1,308,690 and Kshs.736, I 45
rcspcctively.
Funher, analysis providcd under surrunary ofcash and

bank balances in KeRRA head o{fice reflects 3 bank
accounts with cumulative retention funds of
Kshs.2,604,405,029 as at 30 Junc,2022. However, Note
24 to the financial statements reflects contract retention
totaling to Kshs.7,985,152,000 as at the same date. The
variance of Kshs.5,380,'746,911 was not explained or
reconciled.
In the circumstances, the accuracy ofcash and cash
equivalents balance ofKshs.44,527,506,000 could not be
confirmed

Auditors commenls are well noted.
Appropriate correctiee qclion on oll the
outstonding items in the reconciliation
hare been underlsken in lhe subsequent

fnancial period. Current Reconci lialions

lor the various accounl hove been

atloched lor lour review

Director General Resolved

10 I-ong Outstrnding StalT Advances
The statement of financial position as at 30 June,2022
reflects receivables fiom non-exchange transaction
balance of Kshs.l ,665.795.000 which includes; advances
to staff of Kshs.43,271,000. deposits and prepaymcnts of

Auditors comments are noted Sta.lJ

inprest oJksh 40,676,791 .00 relate to the
Authority's 747 sta/f. The lrnprest
continue to be surrendered by stalf and
where necessary recoverv measures have

Director Ceneral Resolved
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Ref. No
on Audit
Report

Issue / Observrtiotr by the Auditor Msnagement Comments Focal Person ao

re3olve the Issue
Status: Resolved
or Not Resolved

Time
frame/
Reasons

Kshs.64,223,000 and other receivables of
Kshs. l,558,302,000. Advances to staff consists of stalT
imprest of Kshs.4o,676,791 and staff advances of
Kshs.2,594,154 totalling Kshs.43,270,945 which has not
been recovered. Some of thcse advances date back to the
year,2019.
In thc circumstances, the recoverability ofstaffadvances
of Kshs.43,271000 could not be confirmed.

been inslituled qgqinst slaf where
communication is receiwd lhat the
aclivity was nol underlaken.
Stqff Advqnces of l{sh 2,594,154.45 qre qt
variow stages of recovery and have been
recovered in full in the subsequenl

Jinancial year.

1l Failure to Revalue Fully D€prccisted Fixed Asscts in
Use

Fixed assets amounting to Kshs.819,328,471 included in
the Authority's asset register were fully dcprcciated, still
in use and had not becn revalued.
This is contrary to Paragraph 49 ofthc lnternational
Public Sector Accounting Standard (IPSAS) No.l7 on
property, plant and cquipment, which provides for
revaluation of property plant and equipment every three
to five years.

In the circumstances, the fair valuation ofthe fully
depreciated property, plant and equipment with a cost of
Kshs.819,328,471 could not be confirmed.
lack ofRoads Inventory

The statement offinancial position and as disclosed at
Note 22 to the financial statements reflects rcad
infi:astructure assets balance of Kshs.l24,l75,1 19,000
comprising ofa balance brought forwald of
Kshs.l18,640,409,000 and transfer fiom work in
progress of Kshs.5,534,710 during the year. However,
Management did not provide an invcntory ofthc roads
under the Aulhority.

Auditors commenls are noled. Audilors
com ents are noted. The Authoriry shall
budget lor revaluation of .fully
depreciated assets to be carried out in the
subsequent rtnancial yeor and
derecognize lully depreciated assets

where applicable.

Auditors comments are noled. Audilors
comments are noted. The Authority shqll
budget lor revdluation of full)
depreciated ossets to be carried out in the
subsequent fi.nancial yeqr and
derecognize fully depreciated assets
where applicable.

Director General Not Resolved F.{ 202]4024
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Ref. No
on Audit
Report

Issue / Observstion by thc Auditor Msnagement Comments Focal Person to
resolve the Is3uc

Stctus: Resolved
or Not Resolved

Time
frrme/
Reasons

In the circumstances, the accuracy, completeness and
validity of roads infi'astructurc asscts totalling to
Kshs.l24.l75. t 19.000 could not be confirmed

t2 Unsupported Psyables
Thc statement offinancial position reflccts payables

balance of I(shs.49,006,01 5,000 as disclosed al Note 24
to the financial statements which includes current
payables from exchange transactions balance of
Kshs.41,020.863,000 and non-current payables from
exchange transactions balance of 7,985,1 52,000.

Auditors comment are noted. poyables in
the ledgers have been resubmitted.for
your raiew

DirEctor Gcneral Resolved

l3 Budgetary Control end Performance
The statement ofcomparison ofbudget and actual
amounts reflecls actual expenditure amount of
Kshs.63,677,934,000 against final expenditure budget of
Kshs.8l,004,390,000 resulting in an under-expenditure
of Kshs.I7,326,456 or 2l% of the budget. Further, it was
noted that the capital expenditure was not includcd in the
budget. In addition, approvals for the over expenditure in
respect ofroad works cost - mainteoance and
employment costs of Kshs.156,998,000 and l?,835,000
respectively were not provided.
The under expenditurc affccted the planned activities and
may have impactcd negatively on road infiastructure
delivery to the public.

Auditors comments are noted. The
Authoritv rolls road works cornmitted
ulreadv lunded lrom the prcvious
Financial year and execl/ted in lhe
curr en! Financi al ve ar.

Director Gcneral Resolved

t4 REPORT ON LAWFTJLNESS AND EFFECTft'ENESS
IN USE OF PUBLIC RESOURSES
Frilure to Adhere to a Third Gendcr Rule

An anal,sis ofthe staffbio data provided for audit
revealed that out ofseven hundred and forty-eight (748)
staff, therc were five hundrcd and twcnty-five (525) male
and two hundred and twenty-three (223) female. Thc
number ofwomen werc therefore below a third ofthe
total number of staff contrary to the requirements of
Anicle 27 (8) ofthe Constirution which stipulates that

This is a legacv issue qnd the Authority
continues to work towards compliance of
the l/3 gender rule in its operqtions,
appo i nt menl s and I raining

Director General Not Resolved w 2023t2024
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Ref. No
on Audit
Report

Issue / Observation by the Auditor Matragement Commetrts Focd Person to
resolve the Issue

Status: Resolved
or Not Rcsolved

Time
framc/
Rersons

not more than two thirds ofthe members shall be ofthe
samc gender.

Management was in breach ofthe law

l5 Violation of r Third Rule ofBasic Pay

An anallsis ofthe payroll for the month of Apil,2022
revealed that 45 employees had net salary way below a

third oftheir basic pay which is contrary to the
Authority's Human Resource Policy and Procedures
Manual. This exposes staffto pecuniary embarrassment.

Managcmcnt did not comply to the enrity's Human
Resource Policy and Procedures manual

Auditors comments ore noted. Human
Resource deportment has communicated
to the qllected stqjf requested them to
restructure their pa! slip to complV with
the a third rule

Director General Not Resolved F't 2011t2024

t6 Delsyed Completion of Project3

Review ofprojects records provided revealed that in thc
financial year under audit, a total of thirty-one (3 I ) ncw
contracts were awarded on different dates, with total
contract cost of Kshs.46,715,868,748. Further, there
were 9l projects awarded between April,2016 and
September, 2020 with a total contract cost of
Kshs.180,656,714,960 of which advance payments
totalling to Kshs.l6, t98,531,681 had been paid as at 30
Jurc,2022.

Auditors comments are noted. The
Aurhoriry conlinues to experience
challenges lunding detelopmenl proj ects
due to inadequate budgetary sllocation
ond delayed exchequer releoses. This has
impqcted on lhe progress these projects.

Director General Resolved
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Ref. No
on Audit
R€port

Issue / ObserYation by the Auditor Msnsgemenl Comments Focal Person to
resolve the Issue

Strtus; R$olved
or Not Resolved

Time
frgme/
Reasons

t'7 Ting'a - Igena - Itsmbe Road (Nyamira County)
The works were , not fully complele and the outstanding
retcntion amount ofKshs.727,876 may not be able to
cover for the cosls

Certificate paid lor the project was al
Interim Pqyment Certifcate. Inspection
and acceptance reporl are done afier a
substantial completion of the road.
- Handing over and completion cerrilicate
are only issued after substantial
inspection or end of Defects Liabilitv
Period.
- Retention money is used to address any
defection during the Defects Liability
Period.

Dircctor General Resolved

l8
REPORT ON EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL
CONTROLS ,RISK MANAGEMENT AND
GOVERNANCE
Lack of an Alnual Trritritrg Plrtr

Included in the employment costs amount of
Kshs.2,821,451,000 is an amount of Kshs.183,945,000
incurred under training and devclopment in the ycar
under rcview. It was noted that during the year under
revicw, employees were sponsored for various training
by the Authority. However, the Authority did provide an
approved annual training plan tojustiry the expenditure.

The Authoriry caried out Skills Gap
Training ond Needs analysis which it
drqws heovilv on its troining direclions in
terms of enhancing and equipping the
stoff. The Aulhority v'ill endeavor to
ensure thql lhe lrqining plqn is prepared
on time. With the ERP through the
employee self semice ponal once rolled
olf the stalf will be able to share their
training requests on time and enable the
committee deliberote and onword
submissions to the Director General.

Director General Resolved

t9 Llck of an Updated Fixed Ass€t Regist€r

Management did not maintain an Updated fixed asset

register as at 30 June, 2022, as required by Section 143
(l) ofthe Public Finance Management Act (National
Govcmment) which states that thc Accounting Officer
shall be responsible for maintaining a registcr of assets

under his or her conrol or posscssion

Auditors comments are noted- The

Authori\, continues to implemenl its ERP
system and lhe Asset Module is expected
to be upgraded to compllt with statutory
requirements

Director General Resolved

20 Unsupported Rev€rsals in the Ledgers Auditors commenls are noted. The

Authoirv has incorporated worl(lows for Director Gene.al Resolved

46



,'a
l{enya Purol *oort .lulhoritt'
,4nnuol Report and l'inanciol Starernents
bbr the year ended JAh June 2023

Ref. No
on Ardit
R€port

ksuc / Obrcrvrtion by ttre Audltor Mrltlgcment Commcnts Focd Penor to
rBolve thc klue

Strtu!: R.GrolY€d

or Not R€rolv.d
Tinc
freme/
Rersons

A rcview ofthc ledgcrs pmvidcd shows that I total of
1,147 trsnsactions rcversals werc effcctcd during the
pcriod undcr rcvicw. Howevcr, therc wcrc no
documcntation providcd showing approval of the
rsversals.

Undcr th€ circurDstances, thc entity is exposed to
unauthorized transactioos which could affcct thc
accuracy of the financisl statcments.

error correction enlries in the ERP
syste atd aow have provision lor
prepsrer ,qryrovel and attachme of
docuenls in ERP
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Euros
r 4,8s0,000

EUROPEAID/ I 34053/ITVWKS/KE Contracts For The
Rural Roads Project
In Eastem Region

Of Kenya
EU Yes

CREDIT NO. BMZ: 2007 65 123 Improvement Of
Rural Roads And

Market
Infrastructure In
Westem Kenya

KFW Euros 9,000,000

Yes

Yes Yes

CREDIT NO. CKE IOI2OIB AND I046
0lJ

Central Kenya Rural

Roads Improvement
And Maintenance

Proj ect

AFD Euros
74,000,000 Yes Yes

Upgrading of "Gilgil
Machinery" Road

Proj ect.

BADEA USD
11,000,000

Yes Yes

CKE I 17 OI H & CKE IIIT 02 J Asal Rural Roads

Proj ect

AFD ASAL Euros
90,000,000

Yes Yes
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